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VICE-CHAIRMAN’S LETTER

Dear Shareholders,
The Directors present Diamond Rose NLs Annnal Report for the year ended 30 June 2006,

The year bas seen constderable work undertaken at the Guanaco project in Chile, with the results

confirming the confidence the Company bas shown in the project.

Staff appointments at Guanaco bawve been made 1o ensure that the Company can fast track explovation
and capitalise on the promising resulis 1o date. Australian projects have been reviewed and rationalised

during the year.

W trust that further progress will translate to growth for the Company and wltimately shareholder

FSHCCESS,

We acknowledge the continned support shown to the Company by ity major sharebolder who continues to

support the Company and shares our commitment 1o see the Company develop into a successful producer.

Yours sincerely

A ISl

Terence Willsteed

Vice-Chatrman

ZH -
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Diamond Roese NL

REVIEW OF PROJECTS

GUANACO PROJECY - CHILE - 35.78% INTEREST

Background

In January 2003 Diamond Rose obtained, through its subsidiary Golden Rose International Limited {GRIL}, an
option to acquire the Guanaco gold-opper project m Chtle from subsidianes of Kinross Gold Corporation
{Guanaco Project}. At a general meeting of the Company held on 14 March 2003, the Shareholders approved the
acquisition by the Company of an interest tn the Guanaco Project.

Guanaco Capttal Holding Corporation {GCH) (an entity under the effective control of Eduardo Elsetain, a
prominent Souath American fund manager) agreed to provide funds to complete the purchase. The agreement to
fund the acquisitton was conditional on GCH holding title in the Guanaco Project pending an equitable
distribution of equity being concluded and also on Diamond Rose managing the project on terms and conditions
to be agreed upon.

The Guanaco Project was acquired from Compaitta Minera Kinam Geanaco and Kinam de Clule Limited {wholly
owned subsidiaries of Kinross Gold Corporation) by a company that is currently wholly owned by Guanace Mining

Company Led {GMC).

In July 2003, a binding internattonal arbitration determined that GCH should hold 51% of the equity in the
Guanaco Project 1n return for an mitial investment of USSL, 100,000 plus an additonal US$00,000 expenditure on
the Guanaco Project. Currently GMC is owned 51% by GCIE and 4%% by GRIL. Diamond Rose has 2 73.01%
mterest in GRIL and, accordingly, the Diamond Rose effective interest in the Guanaco Project 1s approximately

35.780%.

In December 2005, GCH increased its mterest 1n GMC through the acquisition of the minornity mterests iz GRIL
{26.99%). GCIT's current interest in the Guanaco Project, excluding 1ts flow through interest ansing from ies
holding 11 the Company, 1s approximartely 64.22%.

History

The Guanaco District 1s sttuated on the western edge of the main Chilean porphyry copper belt approximately
midway between Escondida to the north and El Salvador to the south. The Guanaco property 1s focated 200
kilometres {(km) southeast of Antofagasta and about 50 km east of the Pan American highway.

The Guanaco region has produced i excess of 2 million ounces {ozs} of gold {Au} since first discovery. After
discovery 11 1878, intense exploitation occurred berween 1886 and 1939. Guanaco 1s reported to have produced 9.3
tonnes (1) Au in 1938 and 3.7 1 Au in 1939 and a toral of 30 £ Au to the mid 1980%. Copper is recorded as mined
between 1928 and 1930, although no production detalls are available.

The Guanaco mine is 40 km from Meridian Gold’s El Penon gold mine which has produced 320,000 ozs of Au
annually at a cost of less than US$50 per oz, Guanaco 1s also 80 km from BHP Billiton's Escondida mine, which
produces £.2 million t of copper {Cu} annually and 1s one of the world’s fargest copper mines.

In 1991 Amax Gold Inc optioned the property and established 2 mineable reserve of 11.3 milbion t at 177 sram per
tonne {g/t} Au. Open pit mining commenced in early 1993 along with conventional heap leaching and a Mermill
Crowe recovery plant. In 1997 the operation was put into care and mamtenance due to fow gold prices and poor
metallurgical recoveries related to copper in the ore. Average gold srades from production at the fime of closure
were stated to be between 3 g/t and 4 g/t In 1999 Kinross Gold 2cquired Amax and the property was taken over by
1ts local subsidiary Kinam Guaznaco. GRIL exccuted an option purchase agreement to acquire the property from
Kinross m September 2002. The option was finally exercised 1 March 2003. The Guanaco Project covers 150 square
kifometres (sq km) of concessions, which exclude the Soledad claims, adjacent to the Guanaco mine, as well as a few
other minor third-party properties.

In September 2005 the final advance royalty payment of US$3 million was paid to the Chilean National Mining
Company, Empressa Nacional de Mineria (ENAMI). This payment completed the acquisition of the Guanaco
Project by GMC.

Current Status
The Guanace mine is currently under care and maintenance.
Three open pit mines were operated by Amax:

*  Dumbo and Defensa open pits exploiting the Dumbo Defensa vein structure; and
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*  Perseverancia pie exploiting the Chilena vein structure.
Substantial assets exist including:
+ crushing plant;
*  heap leach piles contaiming 11 million t at 0.7 g/t Ay
*  heap leach processing plant and equipment including 2 Merntll Crowe recovery plant;
*  administranion block, lsboratory, warehouse, maintenance facilities and an accommaodation complex.
*  mobile equipment; and

#  substaniial exploration data and past production records.

Mineralisation and Resources

Over the 150 sq km concession there are numerous gold and copper mineralisation targets. Drilling, trenchmg, rock
and soil sampling, remote sensing techniques and vanious geophysical methods have contrtbuted a large amount of
avatlable information on the mineralisation, as have access to the open pit excavations developed by prior owners
and the underground workings of the adjacent Soledad mining operation. Most of the gold production has come
from less than onethird of the known 3.5 km mineralized strike length of the Bumbo-Defensa vern system. The
Dumbo-Defensa system 1s flanked by at least 10 other sub-parallel gold bearing structures.

During late 1999 and early 2000 2 wide spaced ditlling programme identified the Cachinalito mineralisation. On
the eastern flank of the Cachinalito system an 1dentified vein system has resource potential.

Drilling undertaken by Amax and Kinroess identified potential for underground mineable mineralisation at the
following locations:

#  Dumbo, between the west wall of the pit and the Soledad property boundary;
*  Uachinalito, to the east of existing access and mined out stopes on the Soledad property; and

#  Chilena, again between the Soledad property where the vein has apparently been mined and the
Perseverancia open pit.

A number of deep holes below the Dumbo and Perseverancia pits have indicated a wide zone of enargite rich
coppergoid mineralisation. An Amax estimate of this mineralised zone quoted an mnferred resource of 42 million t
grading {.84% Cu and 0.6g/t Au to 130 metre {m) depth below these two pits. This mineralisation was stated to be
open to expanston in both strike directions and to depth.

Based on the records of the previous mining and processing operation, the heap leach piles were estimated to
contain about 11 million t of 0.7g/t Au and previous test work suggests that a proportion of this gold may be
economically recovered.

Manager Appeinted

Mr Stabro Kasaneva has been appointed Exploration Manager over the Guanaco Programme following a six month
engagement as independent consultant.

My Kasaneva graduated as a geologist from the Universidad Catolica del Norte, Antofagasta, Chile tn 1988 and has
extensive expertence in the mining tndustry, having previously leld positions with Meridian Gold Inc, Compania
Minera Mantos De Oro, Codelco Chile, Inversiones Mineras Del Inca among other leading exploration and mining
operations.

At Meridian since January 1999, Mr Kasaneva progressed from Senior Geologist to Exploration Manager and
Business Development Manager evaluating multiple business opportunities in Canada, USA, Mexico, Central
America, Venezuela, Peru, Uruguay, Argentina, Feuador and Chile. [He was mstrumental in the discovery of the
Dorada and Fortuna veins i the El Penon area.

Site Programme
During the year ended 38 June 2005, exploration and evaluation activities were undertaken from which an

estimation of the resources was performed for the mineralised zones. These studies indicated additronal ronnages of
lowgrade mimeralisation (<I g/t Au} and an increase in the Chilena vein resource potential.

A section of the Cachinalito deposit was drilled with reverse circulation (RC) and diamond core holes, for 3445m.
Resource estimates for this section of the Cachinalito mineralised zone, for gold cutoff grades from 0.5 g/t to 3.6
2/t showed 2 resources range of 624,000 t at 2.63 g/t to 115,000 t at 896 g/1, classified as Inferred Resources.
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The conclusions drawn from the estimation were that:

*  The average ditll hole spacing in the depostt 1s inadequate to map both the continuity and geometric
complexity of the gold bearing strucrures.

+  Additional dnlling will be required to define the geological and structural controls on the minerahisation
as well as to provide adequate data ro enable subsequent resource estimates to be classified as indicated or
better.

A programme was recommended o continue the site mvestigarions, including to:
*  reevaluate and validate the previous ore resource estimates including the results of dnilling programmes;
*  test the heap leach piles;
+ nfill existing drilling in minerahised zones.
*  rest extensions of known vein structures;
*  review the existing mine data for all relevant supplementary geological matertal; and
*  commence regional exploration of the whole tenement area.

During the year ended 30 June 2006, stage one of the new program was undertaken focused on revision of the
known sectors of Dumbo Qeste {western extension of the mineralization mined in the Dumbo Pit), Chilena and
Abundancia {eastern extenston of the related structures mmed at sarface and underground in adjacent operations},
Cachmalito {eastern extenston of the structure mined 1 adjacent underground operations} to confirm the resources
defined m successive exploration programs i this structure and San Lorenzo Structure (exploration of the eastern
extension of the mineralization mined in adjacent underground aperations).

The program followed 2 reinterpretation of the geology of the district, based on relogging the drilf holes previously
completed 1n the area. Consultants were engaged 1o better understand the districe geology and the distribution of
the different types of hydrothermal aleeration.

Harns y Compania Lida, a Chilean ditlling contractor, have conducted the drilhing program winlst Geoanalitica
conducted sample preparation and analysis. The international laboratory Actlabs carrted out independent check
analysis of a proportion of the samples.

Exploration Progress and Highlighes

A total of 13,035 metres were drilled over 74 holes and results confirm contnuity and with high gold grades
recorded from some intercepts in the Cachinalito and Dumbo Oeste Structures.

#  The extension of the Cachinalito structure was confirmed along strike for approximately 1.6 km and 15 sl
open along strke and depth.

#  The results on the Dumbo Oeste structure confirm the contmuity of more than 150 metres of gold, silver
and copper mineralization in the west face of the Dumbo open pir.

*  The San Lorenzo Structuse was tntercepted and there is still interest in exploring this structure 1 its
eastertl extension.

Tabulations listing the dnilf hole locations and assay records have been presented 1 previous reports to
Shareholders. These results and maps 1{lustrating the drillhole data and mineralisation have been released and are
available on the Company's webstte at www.diamondrose.com.au. The following summarises the results of the
programime.

Cachinalite
Thirty-two RC driltholes were completed for a total of 4751 metres.

In the Cachinalito area, the cccurrence of mineralisation is controlled by the presence of dacitic porphyry that
mnerudes into rhyolitic tuff levels. In the long section, 2 mineralised area can be observed extending toward the east.
A new lhigh-grade mineralized area occurs.

Cachinalite structure

The distributton of mineralisation is exclusively restricted to the presence of the daaiic porphyry, so the followup
to this structure should be directed to this lithology, both to the east and to the west. Besides the Cachinalito
Structure, there are several sub-parallel structures with variable extension and widths that form a system with N80'E
ortentation. These structures represent an interesting potential since they are not totally enclosed and they are
relatively near the main area. In addition, a new high grade area was recognized which is stll not rotally defined.
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The copper content is fower than 500 ppm, which would improve the gold recovery with normal cyanide
Consumption.

Cachinalite Extensivn and Cachinalite Norte

In both sectors, 10 exploration holes were drilled roralling 1898 metres, of which 928 were drilled in the Cachinalito
Extension {5 driltholes) and 970 metres were completed 1in Cachinalito Norte. The results of these driltholes have
shown that there 1s continuity of the Cachinalito structure toward the east, showing anomalous values higher than 1
g/t Au, and grades of economic interest.

A vartation was detected 1 the lithological type that hosts the intercepts with mineralisation, which corresponds to
hthic and pumtce tuff. The intercepts obtatned confirm the continutty of the Cachinalito system toward the east
which mostly presents low copper contents. The intercepts return both values of economic 1nterest and sub-
economic values. However, the widths of economic grades are narrow and limited. The existence of continuous
mineralisation areas s still to be defined and its current potential 1s moderate to low.

Cachinalite Oeste

In the sector located to the west of Minera Soledad, four holes were dnled rowalling 680 metres. The results show
that there 1s continuity from the minerafisation to the west of the Minera Soledad tenement which 15 open both
vertical and horizonzal extension.

The contintuity of the mineralisation of the Cachinalito structure presents similar characreristics to those of
Cachmalito {several sub-parallel structures and low copper content}. The intercepts obtained in this sector have
widths and grades that show lugh poteniial. The distribution of mineralisatton is still open toward the west and in
vertical direction. The priority and the potential of this sector are moderate to high.

Dumbo Ocste

At Dumbo Oeste, 11 drillloles were completed for 2336 metres to the west of the Dumbo Open Pit. The
distribution of mimeralisation 1s mainly associated with rhyolitic pumice wff with strong silicifreation, where most
of the quartz structures are better developed. There were no relevant intercepts in the overlying hithic and pumice
tuff levels. These dnill assays show a continuity of mineralisation of the Dumbo mineralisation toward the west of
the open pit for at least 150 metres , with some high gold grades associated with copper content in excess of 1%.

As 11 the case of Cachinalito, the mineralisation is distributed in several sub-paralle! structeres that follow the
mineralized corndor previously mined in the Dumbo Open Pit. This cortidor extends for at least 150 metres to the
west of the old open pit. The distriburton of grades in this area presents a variability that hinders its interpretation
for the generation of 2 more continuous and wider grade shell. Althoegh there are high grade intercepts {more than
8 g/t Au), they are relatively narrow and/or are accompanied with copper contents of more than 1%. The abrastve
characeer of the rock causes difficulties while drilling.

Chilena

In the Chilena Structure sector, 9 holes were drilled totalling 1914 metres. The priority of exploration in this
structure has changed because a previous ditll hiole indicated an tmportant minerahzed area which when compared
with new hole whose trajectory through the same point, shows an area of waste only. However, in several of the
drillholes completed in the Clilena sector, intercepts with grades of economic interest were recorded. A restudy of
this structure will be carried out using the information obtained 1 the current program.

The geological partern indicated for the structure has not been corroborated by the completed dniilholes. The
analysis for this sector gave some intercepts with economic values, but they are not necessarily related to the
projection of the Chilena structure. These intercepts are not totally defined.

Abundancia

Four holes for 576 metres were drilled m the Abundancia sector in order to intercept the projection of this structure
to the east of Minera Soledad.

The results do not indicate that the Abundancia Seructure has high poteneial.

The driltholes completed in this sector gave negative results, which prevented definition of the continaity of this
structure. The evidence of the continuity of Abundancia toward the east 1s given by the interception of
underground work from the neighbouring property.

San Lorenzo

In this sector, 4 holes were drilled totalling 880 metres. The results indicate that although the structure was
mntercepted, grades are sub-economic.
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The San Lorenzo structure stif! has a high prionty i the reconnaissance of this distrter. Historieally, the oreshoot
mined by Minera Sofedad in this structure gave Ingh grade gold. Future campatgns will continue to mvestigate the
gold distribution i San Lorenzo. The drltholes completed in the projection of S8an Lorenzeo intercepted quartz
structures, which returned sub-economic grades. There exists a possibility of a change m the orlentation of the
structure, which could be located more 1o the north of the originally estimared location closer to Cachinalito.

Twin Holes

During the campaign, 3 additional holes were ditlled using reverse circulation drilling to compare the results
obtatned in diamond drillholes completed in the 2004-05 campaign.

The results indicate that the diamond driltholes have not recognized the grade of the structure appropnately
because of the lower volume of samples obtained, which s a eritical factor in high sulphidation epathermal deposits
where the distribution of grades 1s more erratic and a higher variability 15 present.

The compartson between the diamond drillholes and the reverse circulation favouss the latter for recognizing
mineralised areas and defining prades.

Stage Two Program

A follow up program consisting of a planned 10,000 meters of RC drilling commenced in August 2006 with the
objective to extend the recognized zones of mineralization and to upgrade inferred resources present in the
Cachinahio and Dumbo West Structures by inflll ditlling. Additionally, new zones are included in the exploration
program such as Marcelina, Beatriz and Salvadora Structures {refer project map) and a heap leaching evaluaton
drillhole program to reevaluate the previous heapleaching stockpile.

Results at the date of this report have been released and show:

* A new ore shoot in Cachinalito Oeste Structure has been discovered. The prelimmary results recerved are
indicating strike contmuity for greater than 180 meters n this area. Currently, an extension of the
program is planned 1n this sector and an nfill drillhole campaign 1s being defined.

* A high gold grade zone with an important width has been confirmed in the Cachinalito Structure.

#  The holes drilled in the Perseverancia Structure are showing an interesting continuity and the possibility to
establish new open pitable resources.

Immediate extenstons to the programme are bemng constdered to follow-up and to confirm these resulss. It is
expected that following this program resource estimation will be progressed and mine development and
Investigations commenced.

AUSTRALIAN PROJECTS

Broadbents Project, [90% interest]
The Broadbents Project is lacated 200 kilometres [km] north of the town of Southern Cross m the Yilgarn Mmeral

Field of Western Australia and comprises Mming Lease application M77/86% covering a total area of 64 hecrares

[ha].

On stte investigation mdicates thar the precise locations of the Broadbents tenement corner pegs are not known.
Mining Lease M77/869 will not be granted until its boundaries can be surveyed.

Partial digest soil samples were collected over a 20 ha area of the Broadbenis area as plotted on the Western
Australian Department of Industry and Resources Tendex System, which has recorded an incorrect location.
Analyses yielded only background values.

Further investigation of this tenement would mvolve surveying of tis boundartes, sampling the correct tenement
area and analysing the samples collected. A review of hustorieal data suggests that the anomalous area {one gram of
zold per tonne or more} has dimensions of zpproxtmately 40 metres {m] by 40m. Although this tenement may be
attractive to prospectors it does not have Company exploration potential. Further expenditure cannot be justified
and consequently its relinquishment will be considered.

Buliabulling Project, [95% interest]

The Bullabulling Project ts located about 60 km west-soutlrwest of the City of Kalgoorlie-Boulder in the Eastern
Goldfields Province of Western Australia. The project comprises 8 granted Prospecting Licences covering a total area
of 1,233 ha in the historical Bullabulling gold mimung area.

Gold exploration was done by various explorers during the period 1980 to 1998 and limired activity has extended to
the present time. This work was mainly concentrated on extensive RAB {rotary airblast) and atrcore drilling with the
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objective of delineating deposits of supergene gold within the weathered rock profile {(the regolith). More than 3
million t witl an average grade of about onte gram of gold per tonne have been treated by heap leach methods. The
main workings and treatment facilities were located a short distance west of Prospecting Licences P15/4514,
P15/4515 and P15/4516. This southern tenement group extends south-north and straddles the Grear Eastern
Highway that connects Perth to Kalgoorlie.

Available records suggest that no significant drilling has been done to investigate the potentral for primary fresh
rock {sub-regolith) gold mmeralisation at Bullabulling.

During the second half of the 2005-2006 year exploration by the Company comprised:

*  geological structural interpretation of sazellite tmagery that resulted n identification of a2 major shear zone
1n the renement group;

*  the locattons of access tracks and the collection of reconnaissance soif lag samples along a 1,800m traverse.

The results of this program have indicated a stgnificant anomaly. The analytical results indicate that background
zold values range between 2ppb (parts per badlion). and éppb. The anomaly has a peak of more than 300ppb (0.34).
These results are considered to be highly significant.

Vesetation 1n the project area 1s dense and limited clearing of narrow low environmental impact winding access
tracks will be necessary.

Exploration of the Bullabulling Project 1s an ongoing project. Extensive addittonal soil lag sampling 1s planned for
the southern tenement group. Soil lag sampling 1s also planned to investigate an interpreted shear zone in the
northern tenement group P15/4518, P15/4519, P15/4520, P15/4521and P15/4522. Anomalies will reguire followup
by inclined reverse circulation (RC) hole dnlling.

Kookynie Project, [93% interest]

The Kookynie Project is located about 45 km south east of the town of Leonora in the Eastern Goldfields Province.
It comprises two Exploration Licence applications E40/197 and E40/198 together wath four Prospecting Licence
applications P48/1112 and P40/1116 to P43/1118 covering a total arex of 10.56 square kilometers [sq km]. Access
can be gained from the sealed Kookynie-Leonora road.

Previous exploration activity has been concentrated on the search for regolith (weathered rock) hosted near surface
small gold deposits.

The interpretation of both acromagnetic data and Landsat TM sateilite imagery in 1997 resulted in wdennfication of
numerous potential targets. Follow-up reconnaissance soil lag sampling is planned in order to assign priorities as a
precursor to more detaifed sampling with possible follow-up by RC driling.

Leonota Project, [75% interest]

The Leonorz Project 1s located about 10 km west of the historical mining town of Leonora in the Eastern Goldfields
Region of Western Australia. The Leonora Project camprises Exploration Licences E37/728 and E37/729 covering 2
total area of 414.0 sq km.

In the opinion of the Company’s consultants the potental for discovery of significant gold or base metal deposits s
Limited and the future of this holding 15 therefore being reviewed.

Raeside Project, [75% interest]

The Raeside Project comprises Exploration Licence application E37/736 covering 2 total area of abour 210 sg km
and 1s centred approxtmately 60km west-northwest of the historical gold mining town of Leonora and hes within
the Eastern Goldfields Province of Western Australia.

Following a re-evaluation of all available data the Company's consultants have advised that continuation of
exploration work on this tenement should be reviewed. The recent discovery of nickel sulphide mineralisation
hosted by north-south trending ultramafics well to the north of E37/736 could be of significance.

Hann Project, {106 Interest]

The Company has applied for two exploration licences (E88/2782 - 2783} covering 388 sq km, located 330 km
northeast of Derby.

Promising kimberlitic indicator minerals and some diamonds have been located within the Hann application. The
area has structural similarities with the area in which the Aries kimberlite pipe occurs, which 1s abour 50 km to the
southwest.
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Exploration over these areas to determine commercial potential is being planned in preparation of the grant of the
application licences.

Rocklea Project, [100% interese|

Rocklea Project comprises Exploration Licence Application E(4/832 covering a total area of approximately 207 sq
km and 15 located in the West Pilbara Mineral Field of Western Aunstralia.

The project area covers the southern half of the Archaean Rocklea Dome. The exposed rocks in the central part of
this structure comprise very old granites and greenstones. These rocks are overlain by interbedded basaltic and
sedimenzary rocks of the Fortescue Group.

The most significant previous work done within and adjacent to the project area was iron ore exploration by
Hamerstey Exploration Pry Limited (*Hamersley”) within and adjacent to the northeastern part of current

Exploration Licence E47/952.

Numerous ouicrops of imonite material straddle the Hardy River to the immediaze north of the Rocklea Station
Homestead. The largest mesa-form occurrence, referred to as the “Southern Deposit™ was first scour drilled in 1974,
Seven lrammer percussion holes were completed with 113 one metre samples being assayed. In 1978 a further 12
percussion holes totaling 41%m were drilled on three west-northwest orientated cross lines.

An indicated ore reserve was quoted at that tme of 31 million t grading 53.3% iron, 8.3% stlica, 2.1% alununium
and 0.03% phosphorous with a loss on gnition of 11.4%. This quoted reserve 1s not compliant with the
requirements of the JORC code.

About 6085 of the southern lmonite deposit lies within E47/%952. Hamersley commented that the composition of
this deposit might render it favourable for mixing with other Pilbara iron ores.

The Company is negotiating with a Joint Venture partner with the necessary infrastructure in the Pilbara regarding
the Company's iron ore resources.

Mount Jerusalem, [relinquished)
The Mount Jerusalem diamond project, NSW is located in northeastern NSW near Mullumbimby.

Sampling programs were carried out by the Company during 2005 to evaluate the potential of the project.
Concentrates from mim bulk sampling recovered concentrates that contain a broad range of garets. The garnet
compositions in the samples from Mt Jerusalem confirm non-dtamondiferous eclogiee I facies rocks at depth. This
indicates capture of high pressure rocks ar depth by volcanic activity, and further sampling could locate the volcanic
SOurces.

The lack of diamonds 1n sampling by the Company in the tenement area suggested that eventually a fullscale bulk
sampling method would be the only viable follow-up method to search for the possible rare diamonds, and this very
expensive exploration methodology was not viable compared with very low chance of success.

This, combined with uncertainties regarding previous jolnt venture agreement arrangements and fand access
restrictions, determined that the project be relinguished. Final reports and tenement obligations were completed to
the satisfaction of the Department of Mineral Resources.

DECLARATION

Aspects of this report on the Diamond Rose projects that velate to Minerallsation, Mineral Resoarves or Ove Reseroer are baseld on
infirsmation compiled by persons who are Fellows or Members of the Austraffan fastitute of Mining and Metallarpy and/or the
Australian Instituie of Geoscleniists, and bave sufficient relevant experience of the detioity underidhen and of the minoralisation
style and type of deposit deseribed. They qualify as Competent Persons as defined in the 2004 Edition of the “rAustralasian Code
Jfor Reporting of ldeniified Mineral Resonrees and Ore Reseroes™ (JORC Codz). A list of the names of the Competent Persons is
available upon reguest. The above statement foivly veflects the veports prepared by these Competent Persons and bas been prepared
by TV Willsteed, BE [Min], Fons BA FAudMAM as Compretent Person for Diamond Rose NL. Mr Willstewd consentis to the

snclusion tr this report of the matiers based on thely Infovmation in the form and context In whick it appears.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Your Directors are pleased 1o present the following report for the financial year ended 30 June 2004,
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Economic Entity during the course of the financtal year were diamond, gold and base
metal explonation

The Company 15 a company limited by shares and incorporated and domiciled n Australia.

Detailed mnformation on the Company’s operations dusing the year ended 30 June 2006 has been refeased m the
Company’s announcements and reports to the Australian Stock Exchange and 15 available for review on the
Company's website at www.diamondrose.com.au.

REVIEW AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Operating Results and Dividends
The Economic Entity's net profit attributable to members for the year ended 30 June 2006, was $912,343 (2005:
(loss) $3,269,927).

No dividends of the Parent Entity or any enuty of the Economic Ennty have been patd or declared or
recommended since the end of the preceding financial year. The Board does not recommend the payment of a
dividend in respect of the reporting perod.

Financial Position

The net assets of the Economic Entity have increased by $912,343 from 30 June 2005 o $3,935,19%. This increase
was primarily a result of settlement of the Deed of Termmation and Release dated 13 December 2005, which
terminated the Company’s agreement to pay Vageta Pey Led the sum of $1.8 million in mstalments through to
Ocrober 2689 and 15 accounted for as income i the Company’s accounts.

The Company has the support of major internattonal mstitutions 2nd persons mncluding Mr. Eduardo Elsztain of
Argentina and Messrs. Edgar Bronfman and Michae! Steinhardt of the United States of America.

The directors believe the Company is in a position to malntaln s CUITENI operations.

Significant changes in the state of affairs
The following significant changes in the state of affairs of the Economic Entity oceurred during the financial year:

In September 2005 the final advance royalty payment of US$3 million was paid to the Chilean National Mining
Company, Empressa Nacional de Minersa (ENAMI). This payment completed the acquisition of the Guanaco
Project by GMC.

On 21 November 2005 prospeciing licences were granted with respect to the Company's Australian Bullabulling
project.

O 28 November 2005 Terence Willsteed was appotnted vice-chatrman of the Company.

During the halfyear to 31 December 2605 the Company sold its Mitchell Cotes Heavy Medium Separation Plan:

which was acquired for bulk sampling programmes assocrated with dizmond exploration. As the company is now
engaged primarily in gold exploration the plant was surplus to requiremenis.

On 13 December 2005 the Company concluded an agreement with Vagera Pry Ltd [2 company owned by the
Feldman family] to terminate the company’s agreement to pay, by instalments through to October 2009, 51.8
million in sertdement of any possible clatms by former directors of the Company, or by Vageta, Australian
Gemstone Mining Pry Ltd or associated parties. Thes adjustment was reflected in the Company's accounts at 31

December 2005,

On 16 December 2005 exploration licences were granted with respect to the Company's Australian Kookynte
project.

On 31 January 2006 9,350,000 options to acquire fully paid shares expared.
In February 2006 the Company applied for exploration licences covering the Hlann Project in WA Australia.

On 22 February 2006 the Company clarified the notifiable mterests of directors stating that "no current director has
or ever has had a relevant interest in the shares held beneficially for Global Gold SA”

In March 2006 an extensive dniling program commenced at the Company’s Chilean Guanaco project.
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On 12 March 20086, directors Pablo Kohen and Laura Rovner resigned as direcrors of the Company.

In May 2004 Mr Pablo Vergara del Carnl and Mr Mark Schabas were appointed directors of the Company. Mr
Schabas subsequently resigned. Mr Stabro Kasaneva was appotnted Exploration Manager over the Guanaco Project
following a six month engagement as independent consultant.

In June 2006 the Company released the results of the Chilean Guanaco driflmg program. 13,035 metres were ditlled
over 74 holes and results confirmed continuity, with high gold grades recorded from some intercepts in the
Cachinalito and Dumbo Oeste Structures. The extension of the Cachinalito structure was confirmed along strike for
approximately 1.6 km and 1s still open along strike and depth; and resuits on the Dumbo Oeste structure confirmed

the continuity of more than 150 metres of gold, silver and copper mineralization in the west face of the Dumbo
open pit.

On 7 June 2006 226,663 fully paild shares were issued upon exercise of 4 cent options.
On 9 June 2006 19,250,000 options to acquire fully paid shares expired.

Adoption of Australian Equivalents to IFRS

As a result of the introduction of Australian equivalents to International Finanaal Reporting Standards {AIFRS),
the Company’s financtal report has been prepared 111 accordance with those Standards. A revonciliation of
adjustments arising on the transition to AIFRS is included m Note 3 to the financial statements.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS, PROSPECTS AND BUSINESS STRATEGIES

The Economic Entity wili continue to focus on precious mineral exploration activities with an emphasis on gold
and base metals.

Change of Name

The Company's primary objectives have changed from diamond and gemstone exploration to one predominantly
focused on gold exploration, both locally and oversess. Your Board proposes to recommend to shareholders that the
name of the Company be changed as soon as possible to Austral Gold Limited which more accurately wdentifies the
ohrectives of the Company.

Sharcholder Communication

Your Board s developing a shareholder communication policy which will imclude an upgrading of the Company’s
website and regular newsletters to shareholders that will keep sharcholders and the marker abreast of the Company's
activities and developments.

Fundraising

As the Company’s exploration programs develop there will mevitably be a need for further funds. The Company is
contemplating a nights issue to further secure the Company’s financial position.

Acquisitions

The Guanaco Project tn Clule represents the Company’s most prospective exploration project with the Company
holding an indirect interest of 35.78%. It is proposed to convert tlus to a divect mterest in Guanaco Mining
Company through an in specie distribution of equity held by Golden Rose International Limited {GRIL) to 1ts
shareholders.

Further Likely Developments

Further information about hkely developments in the operations of the Economic Entity and the expected results
of those operations in future financtal years has not been included in this report because disclosure of the
mformation would be hikely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the Economic Entity.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE
In August 2006 the Company received funding from its largest shareholder on the following terms:

a. Funding i the form of a loan advance of $340,600 pending the issue of 12,538,140 Fully Paid
shares at an ssue price of 4.3 cents. The loan 15 partially secured by a charge over the Company.

b. The funds have been provided in this form so that they are available for use by the Company
pending the ssue of securities.

Page @



Directors” Report

c. Shareholder approval for the share 1ssue will be sought at the Company’s AGM, following which
the Company will apply for quotation of the shares.

d. The loan attracts no interest prior to the AGM. Thereafter the loan attracts mterest at the Westpac
Indicator Lending Rate commencing 3 days after the AGM.

Other than disclosed there has not ansen n the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this
fFeport any item, traisaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, to affect significantly the operations, or the state of affairs of the Economic Entity, in future financial
years.

PERFORMANCE IN RELATION TO ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION

The Economic Ennity’s operations are subject to significant environmental regulations under both Commonwealth
and State legislation in relation to its exploration activities.

In Australia the Economic Entity's mining exploration operations are primarily concentrated in Western Australia.
There are signifteant environmental regulations under the Western Australtan Mimng Act 1978 and Environmental
Protection fAct 1986. Licence requirements relating to waste disposal, water and air pollution exist 1n refation to
mining activities.

The Directors are not aware of any significant breaches during the period covered by this report.

DIRECTORS AND OYFICERS

The Directors and Gfficers of the Company at any time during or since the end of the financial year are/were:
Name and Qualifications Experience and Special Responsibilities

Current Officers

The Hon Marcus Einfeld AQ The Hon Marcus Einfeld is 2 former Justice of the Federal Court of
QC (Non-Executive Director) Australia, and the Supreme Courts of New South Wales, Western Australia,
and the Australian Capital Territory.

Prior to his appointment as a Judge, Mr Einfeld practised as a Queens
[Sentor] Counsel, for 10 years and was a practising barnister for 25 years.

He has advised some of Austrabia’s largest companies and appeared in
many of Australia’s most famous cases across a broad range of subject
matters including commercial law, corporations faw, mdustnal law and
workplace relations, compensation and personal imjury and criminal law
{including major corporate frauds).

Mr Einfeld has also advised and appeared in cases involving company
mergers and takeovers, corporate malfeasance, workplace relations and
industrial disputes and major corporate and contractual disputes.

He 15 or has been Chatrman or Board member of 2 number of compantes
including Australian companies NEST Nominees Pry Limited and NRMA
Foundation Ltd, UK subsidiaries Hampden Asia Pacific Pry Limited and
Axiom Asia Pacific Pty Limited, and the South African company Banker

Quin Pee Lud.

Mr Einfeld regularly advises and lectures company boards and executives
and universities on corporate governance, ethics, and social responsibiliey.

Appointed 9 March 2005

Mr Einfeld 1s director of Strathfield Group Limired {appointed 23
November 2065) and International Concert Attractions Led (appointed 24
April 2006}
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Name and Qualifications

Terence V. Willsteed BE(MIN}
[HONS BA FAUSIMM MSME
MMICA {Non-Executive Director}

Pable Vergara del Carril

{Non-Executive Director}

Henry Kinstlinger
{Company Secretary)

Feormer divectors

Laura Rovner
{Former Execurive Director}

Pablo Kohen

{Former Executive Director}

Mark Schabas

{Former Non-Executive Director)

DIRECTORS MEETINGS

Experience and Special Responsibilities

Mr Willsteed is a mining engineer who has, since 1973, been the principal
of consulting mimng engineers Terence Willsteed & Associates. His forty-
year career in the mining industry has imncluded sentor line operational and
engineertng positions with Zinc Corporation, Mt Isa Mines Ltd and
Consolidated Goldfields Lid. In his consulting experience Mr Willsteed
has been mvolved 1n the assessment and development of 2 wide range of
mtneral, coal and oll shale projects, and has participated in the
management of developing and operating minera! projects both in
Australta and internationaily. He holds a Bachelor of Engineering
[Mining] Honours and Bachelor of Auts from The University of
Queensland.

Appointed ¥ March 2005

Mr Willsteed is a director of Climax Mining Lid {appointed April 1996},
European Gas Limtted {appointed 26 November 2002}); Goldsearch
Limited {appointed 20 July 2004); and International Ferro Metals Limited
{appointed September 2005},

Mr Vergara del Carril is 2 lawyer and is professor of Postgraduate Degrees
for Capital Markerts, Contracts, Corporate Law and Business Law at the
Argentine Catholic Umversity.

Appointed 18 May 2006

Mr Vergara del Carnil 1s a director of Banco Hipotecario {2 listed
company, named the best Latin American Bank in 2004 by Latin Finance),
Milkaut S.A. {an Argentine leading dairy company), Nuevas Fronteras
{owner of the Intercontinenial Hotel in Buenos Aires) and
Emprendimiento Recoleta S.A. {owner of the Buenos

Atres Design Shopping Center).

Mr Vergara del Carril 1s director of Guanaco Mining Company Limtted
and Guanaco Capital Holding Corp.

Mr Kinstlinger has been actively mvolved in the financial and corporate
management of 2 number of public companies and non-governmental
organisations for the past fifteen years. e has worked with the Company
since £997 and as Company Secrerary since 1999,

Appointed 9 March 2005 - Resigned 12 May 2006

Appointed 9 March 2005 - Resigned 12 May 2006

Appoinred 18 May 2006 - Resigned 25 May 2006

The number of Directors” meetings {including meetings of committees of directors) and number of meetings
attended by each of the directors of the Fconomic Entity durning the financial year are:

Brector

The Hon Marcus Finfeld

Terence Willsteed

. . . Audit Committee Remuneration

Direciors” meetings . . .
meetings Committee meeting

B A B A B

13 13 1 i 1 1

13 13 1 i 1 1

2 * * i 1

Pablo Vergara del Carnl
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Directors’ meetings Audit Co.mmittec Rem‘uneration‘
meetings Committee meeting
Birector A B A B A B
Laura Rovner 9 1 * * 1 1
Pablo Kohen 1 1 1 1 1 1
Mark Schabas 1 1 # = 2 %
A- Number of meetings attended.
B- Reflects the number of meetings held during the time the director held office during the year.
"

- Noi 2 member of this commiziee

OPTIONS

During or since the end of the financial year, the Company has not granted options over unissued ordinary shares
to any Director.

UNISSUED SHARES UNDER OPTION

At the date of this report unissued ordinary shares of the Company under option, all of which have vested are:

MNumber under

Grant Date Expiry Date Exercise Price Option
14 October 2004 14 Oceober 2009 4 cents 8,773,357
11 December 2062 30 November 2007 12 cents 23,000,000
20 June 2002 20 June 2047 20 cents 11,122,856
11 December 2062 30 November 2007 20 cents 44,245,110
14 October 2004 14 Oceober 2609 20 cents 27,732,040
Total 114,873,337

Shares issued during or since the end of the year as a result of the exercise of options
Number of shares 1ssued: 226,663

Amount paid on each share $0.04

INDEMNIFICATION OF OFFICERS

The Company has not, during or since the end of the financtal year, in respect of any person who 1s or has been an
officer or auditor of the Company or a related body corporate:

* Indemnified or made any relevant agreement for indemnifying against a hability tneurred as an officer,
including costs and expenses 1 successfully defending lepal proceedings; or

*  Paid or agreed to pay a premium in respect of a contract tnsuring against a liabality mcurred as an officer
for the costs or expenses to defend legal proceedings.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

The refevant interest of each director in the share capatal of the Company, as notified by the directors to the
Australian Stock Exchange in accordance with S205G{1) of the Corporations Act 2001, at the date of this report 15
as follows:

Director Direct shares Indirect shares Options
The Hon Marcus Einfeld Nil NGt N
Terence Willsteed Nil N Nil
Pablo Vergara del Carnil? N1 Nk NH

* Pablo Vergara del Carril 1s a director of GCH, the sole shareholder of Global Gold {formerly Nileman Zone SA) which
holds 257,893,301 shares and 90,560,038 options.
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REMUNERATION REPORT

Remuneration Policy

The Economic Entity has a Remuneration Policy which aims to ensure remuneration packages of Board Members
and senior executives properly reflect the person’s duties and responsibilities and level of performance and that

Femueration s competitive 11 attracting, retaining, and motivating people of the highest quality.

To give effect to this policy the Economic Entity reviews available information which measures the remuneration
levels in the various labour markets in which it competes. The expectation of the Economic Ennty is that, for a
particular grade of employee, the total fixed compensation will be at the median level of the relevant market.

Executives are entitled to participate in the employee share and option arrangements. No shares or options were

issued to executives during the year ended 30 June 2806.

There 15 no performance-based component 1o executive remuneration.

Details of Remuneration for Year Ended 36 June 2006

Details of the nature and amount of each major element of the emoluments of cach director and senior executive of

the Company are:
2006

Key Management Personnel

Non-Ixecutive

Terence Willsteed

The Hon Marcus Einfeld
Pablo Vergara del Carril

Total

Former directors

Key Management Personnel

Non-Executive
Mark Schabas
Executive
Laura Rovner
Pablo Kohen
Total
2605

Key Management Personnel

Non-Executive
Terence Willsteed
The Hon Marcus Einfeld
Pablo Vergara def Carril
Total

Former directors

Key Management Personnel

Salary Options issued  Superannuation Total
and Fees . .
$ $ $ $
&0,000 - - 3,000
126,000 - - 120,600
186,060 - - 180,000
The following were directors of the Company dunng the financial year ending 30 June 2006,
Salary and Fees  Optons issued  Superannuation Total
$ $ $ $
97,477 - 2,026 106,563
93,603 - 8,342 103,945
193,086 - 17,368 210,448
Salary . . . .
Options issued  Superannuation Total
and Fees . .
$ $ $ $
60,000 - - 643,600
40,000 - - 404,600
106,066 - - 100,600
Salary and Fees  Optons issued  Superannuation Total
$ $ $ $

Nom-Ixecutive
Mark Schabas
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Key Management Personnel Salary and Fees  Optons issued  Superannuation Total
$ $ $ $
Executive
Laura Rovner 34,551 - 3,087 37,638
Pablo Kohen 31,409 - 2,806 34,215
Total 65,960 - 5,893 71,853

Employment contracts

The employment contracts for executive Directors were not for any fixed term.

My H Kinstlinger 1s the Company Secretary and provided corporate, comimercial and marketing services to the
Company. He has recetved fees of $154,581 during the financial year ended 30 June 2006. In 2005 Sydney
Talmudical College Association (STCA) provided these services to the Company (2005: $203,500), The contract with

STCA was terminated on 9 March 2005, Mr Kinstlinger's services are provided under a contract with the Company

which concludes 31 March 2047,

PROCEEDINGS ON BEHALF OF COMPANY

Other than stated below, n1o person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on belalf of the Company
or intervene in any proceedings to which the Company is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf
of the Company for all or part of those proceedings.

The Company was party to an action before the Mining Warden 1n Western Austrahia in an application for
forferture of Exploration Licences 80/3048 to 80/3051. On 18 May 2006 the Warden made orders against the
Company in the amount of $8,000.

NON-AUDIT SERVICES
The following amounts were paid or are payable for nonaudit services provided by:

PKF Taxation advice and other technical assistance $10,685.

The Directors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit services during the year by the auditors 1s compatible
with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act.

The Directors are satisfied that the provision of the non-audit services did not compromise the auditor independence
requirements of the Corporations Act because the decision as to whether or not to accept the advice provided was
made by management of the Company.

AUDITORS INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

The lead auditors’ independence declaration for the year ended 30 June 2086 has been received and can be found on
page 15,

Stgned m accordance with a resolution of the directors.

A0S

Terence Willsteed

Viee-Chairman
Sydney, 29 September 2006

Ateribution

Aspects of this report that relate to Mineralisation, Mineral Resonrees or Ure Reservey are based on Information compiled by
persoms who are Fellowes or Members of the Asstralian Institnte of Mining and Metallurgy and/or the Australian Institute of
Geosclentists, and have sufficient relevant experience of the actioity underinken and of the mineralisation style and tpe of deposit

described.

They qualify as Competent Persons as defined In the 2008 Edition of the “Australasian Code for Reporting of Identifted Mineral
Resonrees and Ore Reserves™ (JORC Codeh A list of the names of the Competent Persons is available npon reguest. The above
stalement faivly reflecty the veports prepared by these Competent Persons and bas been preparved by TV Willsteed, BE f3in} Houns,
BA CPIMin] FAwsIMM MMICA MSME as Competeni Person_for Digmeond Rose NL. My Willsteed consents o the inclusion

2 this report of the matters baved on their information In the form and context in which It appears.
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Chartered Accountants
& Business Advisers

AURITORYS’ INDEPENDENCE DECLARBATION

Yo: The Directors
Diamond Rose NL

As lead engagement partner for the audit of Diamond Hose NL for the year ended 30 June 2008, |
declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:

{a) no contraventions of the auditor independence reguirements of the Corporations Act in relation to
the audit; and

{b} no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

J

i
%

Bruce Gordon Sydney
Partner Dated: 29 September 2006

Tel: 61 2 8251 4100 | Fax: 81 2 8240 9821 | www pkf.com.au

New South Wales Partnership | ABN 83 236 985 726

Level 10, 1 Margaret Street | Sydney | New South Wales 2000 | Australia
DX 10173 | Sydney Stock Exchangs | New South Wales

Liability fimited by a scheme approved under Professionsl Standards Legislation



Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

DIAMOND ROSE NL AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITTES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2066

&
o
Z
Contiruing cperations
Revenie 4
Income from Deed of Termination and Release
Depreciation expense 5
Compensation For cancellation of management
agreement
Exploration and evaluation expenditure 5
Finance costs 5
Empairment of loans and receivables
Empairment of non-curtent investinents
Reversal of provision for impairment of
InvestIent it associate
Loan forgiveness to controlied entiey
Administration expenses
Share of net losses of associate using the equity
method
Profit/(loss} before income tax
Income tax benefis 7

Profiy/(loss) for the year

Loss ateribueable to minosity equiey interest

Profiy/(foss) attribuiable to members of the
Parent Eadity

Earnings/(foss) per share {cents per share):
Basic earnings/(loss) per share 8
Inluted carnings/{loss) per share

Economic Entity Parent Eatity

2006 2005 2006 2005
$ $ b b
121,852 121,852
{30,257) 130,257
(517,015 {317,015}
(1,83L,041) 161,228}
{91,051) 193,051}
410,007
1,244,326}
411,573
{525,457}
(927,108) (890,265

(411,573

(3,274,620) (2,827,770)

(3,274,620) (2,827,779)

(2,827,770)

(3,269,.927)

The above Income Statement should be read in comunciion with the accompanyving notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

DIAMOND ROSE NL AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITTES

AS AT 306 JUNE 2006

ASSETS

CLURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents Hy
Trade and other receivables 11

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables 11
Financial assets [z
Intangible assets 13
Plant and equipment 4
Explorarion and evaluation expenditure 15

FOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other pavables 14
Shortdern borrowings 7

FOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON- CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables I4
Longterm borrowings Iy

FOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Issued capital I8
Eguity - share capital pending issue 18
Accumuluted fosses 20
Minority equity liierest 21

TOTAL EGUITY

Economic Eatity Parent Eatity

2006 2005 2006 2005
$ § 3 3
1,603,794 1,603,238

17,714 17,714

1,620,952

1,621,508

5,140,336 5,642,038
467,625

467,621
27,461 27,461

197,784 138,79

5,833,202 6,275,915

TA54,7H) 7896867

680,921 680,821
240,000

920,921

240,000
920,921

1,200,000
320,000

1,200,000
320,000

1,520,000 1,520,000

2,440,921 2,440,921

5,013,789 5,455,946

37,272,825 37,272,825
1,000,000 1,000,000
(33,259,136) (32,816,979)

5013789 5455946

The above Balance Sheee should be read in conjunciion with the accompanying noses,
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

DIAMOND ROSE NL AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITTES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2066

Economic Entity
Bakance at 1 July 2004

Lows attriburable eo members of Parene Entiey

Shares issued during the year

Advance by GCH in consideration of a later issue

Bafance at 30 June 2005
Lows attriburable eo members of Parene Entiey
Shares mssued during the vear

Bafance at 30 June 2006

Parent Eatity
Bakance at 1 July 2004

Lows attriburable eo members of Parene Entiey

Shares issued during the year

Advance by GCH in consideration of a later issue

Bafance at 30 June 2005
Lows attriburable eo members of Parene Entiey
Shares mssued during the vear

Bakance at 30 June 2006

Note

Equity -
Issv{cd share ca pital  Accumaiated Total
capital p(Emimg fosses
issue
$ $ 3 $

29,403,644 - (29,989,209) {525,565}
- - (3,269,927} (3,269,927}
7,809,281 - - 7,809,281
1,060,006 - 1,000,600
37,272,925 LOGDOGG  (33,239,136) 5,013,789
- - 612,343 912,343
4,067 - - 4,067
37,281,992 LU0 (32,346,793) 5,935,199
29,463 644 - (29,989,209) {525,565}
- (2,827,770 (2,827,770}
7,809,281 - - 7,809,281
- 1,060,066 - 1,000,600
37,272,925 LOG0,006  (32,816,279) 5,455,946
- - 918353 918,553
4,067 - - 4,067
37,281,992 LOOD0GG  (31,898,424) 6,383,566

The above Statement of Changes in Boguity should be read In conpunceion with the accompanying noes,
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

DIAMOND ROSE NL AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITTES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2066

Note

Cash flows from operating activities
Paymenss to suppliers and emplovees

Finance costs

Net cash vsed in operating activities 28

Cash flows from mvesting activities

Proceeds from sale of plane and equipment
Ineerest recetved
Porchase of investment

Purchase of plant and equipment

Payments for exploration and evaluation
expenditure

Loans 1o associate
Loans 1o controlled entities

Repayment of redated party loans

Net cash provided by/{used in) investing
activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shates
Frrevocable capieal contriburion on accouns of
a Future issue of equity sccurisies
Net cash provided by financing activities

Ner increase/{decrease) in cash held

Cash at beginning of financial year

Cash at end of financial year 10

Economic Entiiy Parent Eatity
2006 2005 2006 2005
] $ $ $

{561,954}
{64,808

(368,335
(69,808}

(631,762) (638,143)
4,054 4054
(467,621 (4676213
{17,865} (17,865
{67,360 (61,392
(4,773,209 (4,773,209

(1,286,467 (1,286,467

(6,608 468) (6,602,500}

7,509,283 7,809,283

1,000,000 1O D00

8,809 283 8 809,283

1,564,053 1,568,640

34,741 34,598

1,603,794 1,603,238

The above Cash Flow Statement should be read in conpunceion with the accompanying notes,

Pape 19



Mees to Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DIAMOND ROSE NL AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2005

1.  Corporate information

The financial report of Dizmond Rose NL {the Company} for the year ended 30 June 2006 was authorised for
1ssue 1 accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 29 Seprember 2006.

Dizmond Rose NL 1s a company limited by shares that is incorporated and domictled m Australia, whose shares
are publicly traded on the Austialian Stock Exchange. Diamond Rose NL has prepared 2 consolidated financial
report incorporating the entities that it controlled during the financial year.

The nature of the operations and principal activities of the Group are described in the Directors’ Report

2. Summary of accounting policies

The financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with Accounting
Standards. Urgent Issues Group Consensus Interpretations, other authontative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board and the Corporations Aer 2004,

The financial report of Dizamond Rose NL and controlled entines, and Diamond Rose NL as an individual parent
entity comply with all Australian equivalents to International Financral Reporting Standards (AIFRS) in their
entirety.

The following is a summary of the materiaf accounting policies adopted by the Economic Entiy in the
preparation of the financial report. The accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise
stated.

(a}  Basis of preparation

The financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with Accounting
Standards. Urgent Issues Group Consensus Interpretations, other authontative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board and the Corporations Ao 2004

The financial report has been prepared on 2 historical cost basis, except for certain financial assers and liabilitres
whicl are stated at fair value

The financial report is presented in Australian dollars.

(b) Statement of complance

The fiancial report complies witl Australian Accounting Standards, wlich include Australian equivalents to
International Financial Reporting Standards {AIFRS). Compliance with AIFRS ensures that the financial report,
comprising the financial statements and notes thereto, complies with International Financial Reporting Standards

(IFRS).

In accordance with requirements of AASE 1: First-time Adoption of Australiar Egquioalents to International Financial
Reporting Standarids, adjustments to the Parent Entity and Economic Entity accounts resulting from the
mtroduction of AIFRS have been applied retrospectively to 2003 comparative figures excluding cases where
optional exemptions available under AASE 1 have been applied. These consolidated accounts are the first
financial statements of Diamond Rose NL to be prepared in accordance with Austrabian equivalents to IFRS,

The accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied to all years presented. The Company has
however elected to adopt the exemption available under AASB 1 from having to apply AASB 132: Financial
Tustraments: Disclosure and Presenttton, and AASB 139 Financial Iestruments: Recopuition and Medsurement to the
comparative period. AASB 2 Share-Bused Payments is applied only to equity mstruments granted after 7 November
20102 that had not vested on or before 1 January 2005, The Company has taken the exemption available under
AASB 1 not to restate previous acquisitions of associates in accordance with AASB 128 fnovsnnnn in Awociates

Reconciliations of the transitions from previous Australian GAAP to AIFRS have been included 1n Note 3 to this
Feport.
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(b) Statement of compliance

Diamond Rose NL believes that certain Accounting Standards that have recently been issued or amended but are
not yet effective may have relevance to the Company for future reporting perieds. These standards have not been
adopted for the annual reporting period ending 30th June 2006:

AASB Affected Standard(s) Applicatton date of | Application  date
Amendment standard® for Group
2005-1 AASB13%: Financiad Fnstragents: | 1 January 2006 1 July 2006

Recognition and Meainrement

2005-5 AASB 1t First-time adaption of ALTRS, 1 January 2006 1 July 2606
AASE 139 Fingnaiad  Tnstrments:

Recognition and Meainrement

2005-6 AASB 3: Basiness Combinations 1 January 2006 1 July 2006

2005-10 AASB 132: Fisancial Instrements: Diselprere | 1 January 2007 1 July 2607
and Preentation, AASB 101: Prerestations of
Finaueial Stazements, AASB 114 Seoment
Reporting AASB 1170 Laaser, AASB 133:
Earnings per Shave, AASB 1390 Iimancial
Tnstruments: Recogrition and Meararoment,
AASB 1o First-time adoption of AIFRS,
AASE 4 Twsaramce Contracts, ALASE 102 3:
Creneral Tommranee Contraety and AASB
1038: L bnimronce Contracts

New AASB 7 Financial Instrooments: Divclpsures 1 January 2007 1 July 2007
standard

* Applicatton date 1s for the annual reporting periods beginning on or after the date shown in the above table.

The following amendments are not believed to be applicable to the Group and therefore have no impact.
AASB Affecred
Amendment Standard(s}

20652 AASB H023: General Fesurance Contracss

20054 AASB 13%: Financial Instrsments; Recognition and Measuremens, AASH
132; Fimawcial ITestramens: Discoswre and Presentation, AASB 11 Firsetime adoption of
AIFRS, AASB 1023: Generad Insurance Contracts and AASB 1028: Life Fnswrance Contracts

20059 AASB 4: frurrance Contracts, AASB 1023: General fnsuvance Contract, AASB
139: Fimancal Instrumenss: Recognition and Measwrement and AASB 1320 Finawcial
Instruments: Disclosare and Prosertation

2005-12 AASB 1038: Life Insurance Contracts and AASB 1023 Generad Frsurance Contraels
2065-13 AAS 23: Financial Reporting by Superannsation Plans
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Accounting Policies

{a)  Basis of consolidation

A controlied entity is any entity Diamond Rose NL has the power to control the financial and operating policies
of so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

A hist of controlled entities 1s contained in Note 26 1o the financial statements. The financial statements of the
subsidianes are prepared for the same reporting pertod as the parent company using consistent accounting
policies.

All inter-company balances and transactions between entitzes tn the Economic Entity, including any unrealised
profits or losses, have been eliminated on consolidation.

Minority equity interests in the equity and results of the entities that are controlled are shown as a separate item
in the consohidated financial report.

Controlied entitics

The financial statements of conirolled entities are included from the date control commences uniil the date
control ceases.

Associates

Associates are those entities over which the Economic Enrity exercises significant mfluence, which are nether a
subsidiary or a joini venture.

Under the equity method, the investment in the associate 1s carrted in the consolidated balance sheet at cost plus
post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of net assets of the associate. Goodwill relating to an associate is
included in the canrying amount of the mvestment and s not amortised. After apphication of the equity method,
the Group determines whether it 1s necessary to recognise any additional impairment loss with respect to the
Group's net investment in the assoctate. The consolidated income statement reflects the Group's share of the
results of operations of the associate.

Where there has been a change recognised directly tn the associate’s equity, the Group recognises its share of any
changes and discloses this m the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The financial statements of assoclates are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company using
consistent accountmg policies.

The Economic Entty’s equity accounted share of the associates net profit or loss 1s recognised m the consolidated
income statement from the date significant influence commences until the date sigmificant mfluence ceases.

(b) Revenue recognitfion

Reventue from the sale of goods 1s recognised when control of the goods has passed to the buyer, the amount of
revenue can be measured reltably and it 1s probable that 1t will be recetved by the Company.

Interest revenune

Interest revenue is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method. This is 2 method of caleulatng the
amortised cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest tncome over the relevant pertod using the effective
nterest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Sale of noun-current assets

The net gain on sale of non-carrent assets 1s tncluded as revenue at the date control of the asser passes to the
buyer, usually when an unconditional contract of sale is sipned.

The gain or loss on disposal 1s caleulated as the difference between the carrying amount of the asset at the time of
the disposal and the net proceeds on disposal.

{c) Goods and services fax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of tie amount of GST, except where the amount of GST meurred
15 ot recoverable from the Australian Tax Office. In these circumstances the GST 1s recognised as part of the cost
of acquisition of the asset or as part an item of the expense.

Recetvables and payables in the balance sheers are shown inclusive of GST.

Page 22



Diamond Rose NE

Cash flows are presented i the cash flow statements on 2 gross basis, except for the GST component of nvesting
and financing activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows.

{d} Exploration and evaluation expenditure

Exploration and evaluation expenditure incurred is accumulated m respect of each identifiable area of interest.
These costs are only carried forward to the extent that they are expected to be recouped through the successful
development of the arez or where actvities in the area have not yet reachied a stage that permits reasonable
assessment of the existence of economically recoverable reserves.

Accumulated costs 111 relation to an abandoned area are written off in full against profit in the year in which the
decision to abandon the area is made.

When production commences, the accumulated costs for the relevant area of mterest are amortised over the life of
the area according to the rate of depletion of the economically recoverable reserves.

A regular review 1s undertaken of each ares of interest to determine the appropriateness of continuing to carry
forward costs in relation thar area of interest.

Costs of site restoration are provided over the life of the faciiity from when exploration commences and are
included 1n the costs of that stage. Site restoration costs include the dismantling and removal of mining plang,
equipment and building structures, waste removal, and relabilitation of the stie in accordance clauses of the
mining permits. Such costs have been determined using estimates of future costs, current legal requirements and
technology on an undiscounted basis.

Any changes in the estimates of the costs are accounted on a prospective basis. In determining the costs of site
restoration, there 1s uncertatnty regarding tle nature and extent of the restorarton due to communtiy expectations
and future legtslarion. Accordingly the costs have been determined on the basis that the restoration will be
completed within one year of abandoning the site.

{e) Infangibles
Goodaill

Goodwill and goodwill on consolidation are mittally recorded at the amount by which the purchase price for a
business or for an ownership interest in a controlled entity exceeds the fair value attnibuted to 1ts net assets ar date
of acquisition. Goedwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is mcluded in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisition
of associates 15 included m investments 111 associates.

Following initia! recognition, goodwall is measured at cost less any accumulated imparrment losses.

Goodwill 15 tested reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
mdicate that the carrying value may be impared.

Impairment s determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generaring vt to which the goodwill
relates. When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount, an impairment
Loss 18 recognised.

Impairment losses recogmsed for goodwill are not subsequently reversed.

Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

{f}  Joint ventures

Expenditure incurred m relation to earming the Economic Entty's beneficial interest under Joint Veniure
agreements are carnted forward to the extent that management consider that 1t 1s probable that furure economic
benefits will eventuate and can be measured reliably.

Where these benefits cannot be measured reliably, these costs are fully provided for in the financial period.

(g}  Investments

Controlied entitics

Investmenis in controlled entities are carried 1n the Parent Entity's financial statements at the lower of cost and
recoverable amount.

Asseciates

Investmenis in associate companies are recognised m the financial statements by applying the equity method of

accounting, as explained m note 2c.
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¢h) Properiy, plant and equipment
Plant and equipment 1s stated ar cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation

Items of plant and equipment have limited useful lives and are depreciated on a straight line basts over thetr
estimated useful lives.

Depreciation and amortisation rates and methods are reviewed annually for appropriateness. When changes are
made, adjustments are reflected prospectively in current and future periods only. Depreciation and amortisation
are expensed, except to the extent that they are included m the carrying amount of another asset as an allocation
of production overheads.

The depreciation rzie used for plant and equipment 1s between 10% - 20%.
Impairment

The carrying values of plant and equipment are reviewed for Impatrment at each reporting date, with recoverable
amount being estrmated when events or changes m circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired.

The recoverable amount of plant and equipment is the higher of fatr value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to thetr present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current marker assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset.

For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, recoverable amount 15 determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs, unless the asset’s value in use can be estimated to be close to its
fair value.

An tinpairment exists when the carrying value of an asset of cash-generating units exceeds its estemated recoverable
amount. The asset or cash-generating unit 1s then written down to its recoverable amount.

Derecognition and disposal

An ttem of property, plant and equipment 1s derecognised upon disposal or when no further future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

Any gatn or loss anising on derecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) 1s included 1n profit or loss i the year the asset s derecognised.
(i) Translation of forcign currency items

Both the functional and presentation currency of Diamond Rose NL and its Australian subsidiaries is Australian

dolars {§).

Transactions in foreign currencies are mitially recorded in the functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at
the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and habilizies denominated 1n foreign currencies are retranslated ar
the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheer date.

Exchange differences are recognised as revenues or expenses i net profit or loss in the period m which exchange
rates change except for qualifying assets and hedge transactions.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are ranslated using the
exchange rate as at the date of the mnitial transaction.

The funciional currency of the Company’s associate company Guanaco Minmg Company Limited is United
States dollars {USS).
{f}  Cash and cash cquivalents
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash includes:
»  cash on hand and at call deposits with banks or financial institutions; and
*  other short-term highly liquid investments with onginal maturities of three month or less, and bank
overdrafts.
(k} Income Tax
Current tax assets and liabilittes for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be

recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are
those that are enacted or substantively enacred by the balance sheer date.
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Deferred income tax is provided on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of
assets and labtlities and ther carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred mmcome tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences except:

»  When the deferred mcome tax liablity arises from the tmtial recogmuon of goodwtll or of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combmation and that, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; or

*  When the taxable temporary difference s associated with investments o subsidiaries, assoctates, or
interests in joint ventures, and the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled
and it 15 probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax
assets and unused &x losses, to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and the carry-forward of unused rax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

*  When the deferred mcome tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or llability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects netther the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; or

*  When the deductible temporary difference 1s associated with investments in subsidiartes, associates, or
interests in jolnt ventures, in which case a deferred rax asset 1s only recogmsed to the extent that 1t is
probable that the temporary difference will reverse 1 the foreseeable furure and raxable profir will be
available against which the temporary difference can be utibised.

The carrying amount of any deferred income tax assets recogmised is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred income tax asset to be unlised.

Deferred mrome tax assets and ltabalities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when
the asset 1s realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Income taxes relating to items recogmsed directly to equity are recognised in equity and not in profit or loss.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if 2 lepally enforceable nght exists to set off current

tax assets against cerrent tax labilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Tax consofidation

Faor the purposes of income tax, Diamond Rose NL and 1ts controlled entities do not form a tax consolidaced
group. The individual companies {odge tax returns independently of each other.

()  Acquisition of asscts

All assets acquired are recorded at thetr cost of acquisition, being the fair value of the consideration provided plus
ncidental costs directly attribuzable to the acquisition. Where there is an acquisition of 2 group of assets the cost
of acquisition s apportioned 1 proportion to the fair value of the assets acquired.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration 1s deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of the acquisition. The discount rate used is the incremental borrowing rate,
being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obrained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions.

{m) Trade and other reccivables
Trade accounts receivable, amounts due from related parties and other recetvables represent the principal amounts

due at balance date plus accrued interest and less, where applicable, any uncarned income and provisions for
doubtful accounts.

{n) Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilittes for goods and services provided to the consolidated entity prior to the end of

the financial year and which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of
recognilion.
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Trade payables and other payables are carried ar amortised costs and represent liabilittes for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and anise when the Group beromes
obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of these goods and services.

(o) Interest bearing liabilities

All loans and borrowings are tnitially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the constderation received net of
issue costs associated with the borrowing.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowtngs are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective mterest method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking nto account any issue costs, and any
discount or premium on settlement.

Gains and losses are recognised n the mcome statement when the hiabilities are derecognised and as well as
through the amortisation process.

{p} Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group las a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for
which 1t 15 probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured.

If the effect of the ume value of money 1s material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current marker assessments of the tme value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific o the llability.

Where discounting s used, the ncrease 1n the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

{q) Leases

Lease payments for operating leases, where all the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are recognised as an
expense 1n the income statement on a straight line basis over the lease term.

{r) Operating cycle

An operating cycle of 12 months has been used as the basis for identifying current assets and current liabilities in
the balance sheets.

(s} Impairment of assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying values of s tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have been tmpaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asser, betng the higher of the asset’s fatr value less costs to sell and value in use, is compared to the
asset’s carrying value. Any excess of the asset’'s carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the
income statement. In assessing value i use, the estimared future cash flows discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate.

Impairment testing s performed annually for goodwiil and inmangible assets with indefinite lives or more
frequently 1f events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be tmparred.

Where tt 1s not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

{t} Derecognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial assets

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) 15
derecognised when:

»  the rights to recerve cash flows from the asset have expired

#  the Group retains the right to recerve cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay
them i full withour material defay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; or

»  the Group has transferred its rights to recetve cash flows from the asset and either {a} has rransferred
substantially all the nisks and rewards of the asset, or {(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has netther transferved nor
retained substantiaily all the risks and rewards of the asset nor eransferred control of the asser, the asset 13
recognised to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing imvolvement that takes
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the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration received that the Group could be required 1o repay.

When contmuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option {incdluding 2 cash-setiled
option of similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group's continuing involvement is the
amount of the transferred asset that the Group may repurchase, except that in the case of a wriiten put option
{including a cashsertled option or similar proviston) on an asset measured at {air value, the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement 15 {imited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise
price.

Financial ltakifitics
A financial habihity is derecognised when the obligation ender the liability 1s discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial habihity 1s replaced by another from the same lender on substaniially different rerms,
or the terms of an existing lrablity are substantially modified, such an exclange or modification is treated as a
derecogmtion of the oniginal hiability and the recognition of a new limbality, and the difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

{u} Contribuied equity

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the sue of new shares or
options are shown in eguity as a deduction, net of 1ax, from the proceeds.

(v} Earnings per share
Basic carnings per share

Basic earmings per share is determined by dividing net profit after tncome tax atiributable to members of the
parent, excluding any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares, by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements tn ordinary shares 1ssued
during the year.

Dilnted carnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earntngs per share to take mto
account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs assoctated with dilutive potential ordinary
shares and the weighted average number of shares assumed to have been issued for no consideration in relation to
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

{(w} Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised ag an expense when incurred and capitalised for qualifying assets. There were no
costs or fees captialised on amounts borrowed during the period.

{x} Employee leave benefits
Wages and salaries, annuad lave and sick leave

Liabifities for employees” entitlements to wages and salaries, annual leave and other employee entitlements
expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in current provisions in respect of
employees” services up to reporting date and are measured at the amounts expected to be pard when the labilities
are settled. Liabilities for non accumulating sick leave are recognised when the leave is taken and measured at the
rates patd or payable.

Long serodce beawe

The liability for long service leave 1s recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured as the
present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the
reporting date using the projected unit credit method. Constderation is given to expected future wage and sabary
levels, experience of employee departures, and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using
market yields at the reporting date on national government bonds with terms to matursty and currencies that
match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

Superammnation

The Company contributes 1o an employee superannuation fund. Contributtons made by the Company are legally
enforceable. Contributions are made in accordance with the requirements of the Superannuation Guarantee
Legislation.
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{y} Going concern

The Company and its controlled entities derived a profit of $912,343 for the year ended 30 June 2006. Included
1 non-current assets are amounts due from Guanaco Mining Company Limited amounting to $5,232,443 and, in
addition, goodwill relating to the Guanace Mining project of $467,621.

The on going viabihity of the Economic Entity and the recoverability of its non-current assets is dependent on the
success of the project. The Directors believe that the project will be ultimately successful and that the non-current
assets are mcluded in the Financial Report at their recoverable amount.

The financial report has been prepared on the basts of a going concern. This basts presumes that funds will be
available to finance future operations, project expenditure exploration commitments and to repay labikities and
that the realisation of assets and settlement of habilities will occur in the normal course of business. The Directors
believe that the Economic Entity will be able to fund future operations through equity raising, and sale or joint
venturing of interests held in mineral renements and projects.

At the date of this report other sources of funds are being sought to fund furure working capital requirements of
the Company.

The Directors believe that they will be successful mn raising sufficient funds to ensure that the Company can
continue to meet 15 debts as and when they become due and payable. However, If additional funds are not raised,
the going concern basis may not be appropriate with the result that the company may have to realise 1tz assets and
extinguish is labilities other than in the ordinary course of business and in amounis different from those stated
in the Financial Report. No allowance for such circumstances has been made in the Financial Report.

{z} Comparative figures

Where required by accounting standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes tn
presentazion for the current financial year.
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Nose

Previous GAAP
at 1 July 2004

Effect of
Transition o AIFRS ar
AIFRS 1 July 2004

Impact of adopiion of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting

Standards

Economic Entity
Reconciliation of equity at I July 2004
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash cquivalents

Trade and other receivables
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other recevables

Plant and equipment

Exploration and evaluation expenditure
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

TCOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABIHITIES

Trade and other payables
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
NON- CURRENT LIABHITIES

Longterm borrowings

TOTAL NONZCURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Fssued capatal
Fguity - share capital pending issue
Accumulated losses 3a
Minoriy equity teerest
Reserves 3b
TCTAL BQUITY

$ L $
34,748 34,741
12,038 12038
46,779 46,779
688,833 488,833
39,853 39,853
1,976,226 1,976,226
2,704,812 2,704,912
2,751,691 2,751,691
1,394,222 1,394,222
1,394,222 1,394,222
1,883,034 1,883,034
1,883,034 1,883,034
3,277 25 3,277,256
(525,565 {325,565
29,463,644 29,463,644
(30,440,827) 451,618 (29,989,208

451,418 (451,618)

(525,565 {525,565
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g Effect of
Z  Previous GAAP Transition fo ATERS at
a1 30 Jane 2005 AIFRS 36 June 2008
$ 3 $

Economic Entity
Reconciliation of equity at 30 June 2005
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash cquivalents 1,603,794 - 1,603,794

Trade and other receivables 17,714 - 17,714
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS [,621,508 1,623,508
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Trade and other receivables 5,140,334 . 5,140,336

Intangible assets k' 432,549 35,072 467,621

Plant and equipment 27,461 - 27461

Exploration and evaluation expenditure 197,784 - 197,754
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 5,798,130 35,072 5,833,202
TOTAL ASSETS 7419638 35,072 7,454,710
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABHITIES

Trade and other pavables HBL921 - HEL921

Shoreterat borrowings 2406 - 243006
TOTAL CURRENT LIABHLITIES 920,921 - G2L921
NON. CURRENT LIABHITIES

Trade and other payables 1,200,000 - 1,200,000

Longterm borrowings 20,060 - 320060
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 1,520,000 - 1,520,000
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,440,921 - 2,441,921
NET ASSETS 4978717 35072 5,013,789
EQUITY

Fssued capital 37,272,925 - 37,272.925

Fquity - share capital pending issue 000,000 . IREEIRE L

Accumulared losses 3a {33,745,526) 486,690 (33,259,136)

Minoriy equity pkerest

Reserves 3b 451,618 {451,618)
TOTAL EQUITY 4978717 35,072 5,013,785
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()

(&)

Economic Entity

Reconciliation of Less for 2005

Revenue

Depreciation and amottisation expese

Crompensation for cancellation of managemens
agreement

Exploration and evaluarion expenditure
Fraance costs

Reversal of provision for diminueion of
HIVESTINen i associite

AdmInSIFAIoN exXpenses

Share of net loss of associate using the equity
method

Loss before income tax

Income tax benefic

Loss for the vear

Loss atributable to minoriy equity mrerest

Lass atsributable w0 members of the Parent Entity

Parent Entity

2
2 Previous GAAP
2005

$

Effect of
Transition to
AIFRS 2005

$

AITRS 2003
3

There was no AIFRS impact on the Parent Entiey from 1 July 2004 10 30 June 2005,

Tax effect

No tax effecs arose as a result of the above adpastments,

Economic Entity

Adjustments to accumulated losses comprise:
Reversal of capial reserves

Reversal of goodwiil previously amorised

121,852 123,852
(65,329 35072 {30,257
(317015 (317015
(1,831,041) {1,831,041)
(91051 (91,0513
411,573 411,573
(927,108} (927,108}
{411,573 (411,573}
(3,309,692} 35072 (3,274,620}
(3,309,692} 35072 (3,274,620}
4,653 4,693
(3,304,999 35,072 (3,269,927
3C June 20035 1 July 2004

$ $

451,618 451,618
a5072

386,690 451,618

Under AGAAP the capital reserve was recognised in order to represent the issue of capital in a controlied entiey in
excess of the underlving value of these shares ar dare of issue. Such reserves are not recognised under AIFRS,

Under AGAAR goodwill was amortised over its useful 1ife {not exceeding 20 vears). Under AASE 136 Inspairment of
Assefs amonisation Is not provided against indefinite life assess, which are instead reviewed on an on-going basis for

indications of impairment.
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()

(5)

Revenue

Firony oparafing activities

nterese revenue from:
Associated company
Oher parties

Non-gherating acivitier

« Gain on disposal of plane and equipment

« Other

Profit/(loss) before income tax
Expenses

Depreciation of plant and equipment

Finance costs:

- ulrimate parent company

- related parics

- discount on issue of financial asseis

- other ingeress

Exploration and evaluation expenditure
Rengal expense on operating leases - minimum
lease payrents

Revenue and Net Gains

Forelgn cuttency translation gain

Individually significant dems included in loss

from avdinary activities before income tax

Provision for bad and doubsful debis - uirimate
parent undertaking

Impairment of loans

Auditors’ remuneration

Remuneration of the auditor of the Parent Entiey

foe
- atditing or reviewing the financial reports

- other services/tasation

Economic Entily Company

117,798

4054

121,852

30,257

63,361
21,243

6,447
1,051

1,831,041

24,181

229,789

141,662

117,798

4,054

121,852

30,257

63,361
21,243

6,447
931 051

61,228

24,181

229,759

141,662

44 59t
7,825
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Economic Entily Company

7 Income tax benefit

{a) The major componenss of income fay
expense/{bencfity are:
Inconte Staternent
Current ICOme tax

Deferred ncome tax

{b} A reconciliation berween tax expense/thenefit)
and the product of accounting profi before
income tax mubtiphied by the Group's applicable
O faY rate is as follows:

Prima facie meome tax expense/(benefit) : {992,905} {848,331}
caleuiaced ar 309% {200%:30%lon the profit/{loss)
from ordinary activities

Nen-allowabie expenditure . 330,944

Deferred rax assers not brought to account 942,508 317,387

Total income tay expense/{benefis)

Tax fosses carried forward 5,693,726 4,914,547

The Direciors are of the view that there Is insufficient probability thar the parent entiry and its subsidiaries will
derive suflicient income in the foresceable fueure to justife booking the tax losses and temporary differences as

deferred sax assets and deferred eax liabilities.

The potential deferred sax asset will only be obmined if
i The relevant company derives futare assessable ncome of & natute and an amount sufficient to enable the

betefie to be realised, or the benefit can be realised by another company in the Beonomic Entity in accordance
with Division 170 of the Income Tax Assessment Acr 1997,

it.  The relevant company and/or Economic Entity continues to comply with the conditions for deductibiliey
imposed by the Taw; and

Hi.  No changes in tax legislasion adversely affect the Company and/or the Feonomic Enelty in realising the
benefie.
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10

Earnings per share

Basic earmings per share amounts are calculared by dividing net profit for the year atributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted earnings pet share amounts are caleulated by dividing the net profit anributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent by the weighted average aumber of ordinary shares owtstanding during the vear plus the weighted average
number of ordinary shares thar would be issued on conversion of all the dilunve potential ordinary shares ineo
ordinary shares,

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted carnings per share compuations:

Lconomic Entity

2005
L3

Earunings reconciliation
Net profit/{loss) {3,274,620)
Net loss atrributable to ourside equity Interests 4,693
Basic and diluted earnings {3,269,927)

2005

Munber
Weighted average number of shaves used as the denominator
Nuaber for basic carnings per share 291,927,535
Number for diluted earnings per share 291,927,535
Basic profii/{loss) per ordinary share {cents per share) (1.12)e
(1.32)¢

Basic and diluted profit/({loss) per ordinary share {cents per share)

Segment information
Bursiness segments
The Econemic Entity operates i one business segment being precious mineral explorasion,

Geographical segments

The Economic Entity's operations are conducted primanily in Avstralia, At 30 June 2006 the Company holds a
significant interest in Guanaco Mining Company, the owner of the Guanaco Project in Chile,

Eeonomic Entity Company

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank an in hand 451,979

Shortterm bank deposits 1,153,259

1,603,238

The effecerve interest rate on shortterm bank deposic
was 5.20%0 (2005 5.529%); these deposits have an
average marurity of 30 days.
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Econosmic Entity Company

1  Trade and other receivables

Current
Advances 5,7 5,396
Other debiors K 12,318

Amoungs receivable from controlled entities

Provision for impairment of amounts receivable from
controlied entides

Loans to conrrolled entitios are unsecured, interest free and with no fixed repayment serms and were used to fund
exploration expenditire in those entities.

The amount receivable from controlied entitics is dependent on the suceessful development and exploitation of the areas
of interest or alternatively, by their sale. The provision for impairment has been made by the Parent Entity so that the
amount receivable from Golden Rose Limited s equal to the ner asset value of that controfled ent

Non current

Auwmrotnts veceivable from:

Ultimate parent entity 143,662 141,662
iﬁ:\;;)rovisiarl for impairment - ultimate parens (141,662 (141,662)
Associated entities 5,290,336 5,290,336
Less proviston for impairmens - assoctated entities {150,000 {150,001
Controlied entities A0

5,642,038

Included in foans due from associated entities is & loan of $5,232,443 (2005: $5,290,336). The loan s unsecured. Interese is
pavable on the principal amount of the foan at a rate of 3%. $1,302,328 1s for no fixed term, the balance is due on
9 March 2008,

Economic Entity Company
2005
$
I2 Financial assets

Non-current
Shares 1n controlled entities 467,623
Inveseraents in controlled entries
Shares 1 associates (Note 24) 2

467,625

Shares in controlled entities comprise fully paid ordinary shares and afl shares are unguored. These companies are wholly
owned by Diamond Rose N

Fnvestments in controlled entities represent loans from the parent entity that have been teclassified as Tovestments in
Subsidiaries where the recoverability of the loans from the parent ensity to the subsidiaries is dependant on the successful
realisation of mining assers held by the subsidiary and its assoeiare, The Directors believe this will be achieved shrough
cither the commercial development of mining assets or the sale to 2 third parry.
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13

14

15

16

17

Infangible asscts

Goodwill - ar cost

Economic Entity
2005

Company
2005
5

447,62

Goodwil] has been capitalised at cose. This intangible asset has been classed as an indefinite life asset. I an imparrment
indication atises, the recoverable amount is estimared and an unpairment loss is recopnised to the ouent that the
recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount

Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment - af cost

Accumuiated depreciation

Movernents in carrving value

Reconciliations of the carrving amounts for cach
class of plans and equipment are seg our below:

Plant and equipoent

Cartving amount ar beginning of vear

Additions

Prsposals

Pepreciation

Carrying amount at end of vear

Exploration and evaluation expenditure

Costs carried forward in respect of areas of interest
it

Exploration and/or evaluation phase

Provision for diminusion

The wlrimate recoupment of costs caszied forward for exploration

432,240
(404,775

27461

39,853
17,865

(3257
27,461

3622421
3,883,630

k 138,791

and evaluation phases 1s dependens on the successful

development and commercial exploration or sale of the respective areas.

Trade and other payables

Current
Trade creditors and accruals

Amount due to related party

Non-Current

Amount due to related party

Trade creditors are non-inserest bearing and are normall

Borrowings

Carrent

Amount due to related eneisy (unsecured)

Non current

Amount due to related entities {unsecured)

59,678
421,243

480,921

1,2660,00 L20O000

v settled on 30 day terms.

24K 24,000

320,000

320,000
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Feonomic Entity Company
2003 2003
$ 5
I8 Issucd capital
404,418,205 (2005: 404,191,542) fally paid ordinary 37,272.92 37,272,925
shares
Eguity — share capital pending issue
Advance by GCH in consideration of a later fssue of
sectirities ” 1,G00,00 O00,000
Mowvement in ordinary shares on issue
2006 2005 2006 2005
No.
Ordinary Shares "
Balance at the beginning of the year 208,959,560 208,959,502
Shares issued during the vear
£4 Ot 2004 27,732 014 27,732,040
EF Jan 2005 6,500 76, 500,000
HY Mar 2005 S1,000,00 93,000,000
7 fune 2004 .
Balance at end of year 404,191 ,54 404,391,542
2005
5
Ordinary Shares ++
Balance at the beginning of the year 29,463,64 29,463,644
Shares issued during the vear
£4 Qe 2004 109,281
F7 fan 2005 3,060,000}
Y Mar 2005 3,640,000
7 fune 2006 -
37272925

+ Om 18 May 2005, GCH advanced $LOO0000 o the Company for its exclusive use, in consideration of a futer issue
of 23,255,814 securiiies,

+i Ordinary shares participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the Parene Entisy in proportion to the
number of shates held.

At sharcholders meetings cach ordinary share is entitled to one vote when a poll is called, otherwise cach
siareholder has one vote on a show of hands.

It sccordance with corporations legislation the shares have no par value,
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2005
Number of
oplions
19 Unlisted options
Balance ar beginning of vear 179,235,520
Essued during she year 55,464,080

Exercised during the yvear {9 LH0,0008

Lapsed during the vear

Balance at end of the year 143,706,040}
Economic Eatity Company
T 2005 . o 2005
L3
24 Accumulated losses
Accumulated osses at heginning of year (25,589,204 {29,989,209)

Net profis/{loss) 3,269,927 {2,827.77)

Accumulated Josses at end of year (33,259,136 (32,816,579}

21 Minority equity interests

Manoriey equity interests in conerolled entities
COMPrISe:

Fngerest in share capieal
Losses atributable to minorisy interest

Total minorry equiy interests

22 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(a)  Credit risk exposure

The maximum credit risk exposure of financial assets 1s represented by the carrying amounts of assets recognised
i the Consolidated Balance Sheet net of any provisions for losses
(B} Lignidits Risk

As the Group currently has no material borrowings, the Group's current exposure to Haquidity risk s minimal.

(¢} Foreign carrency risk

Loans due from the associate undertaking of the Group are denommated 1n US§ therefore the Group's balance
sheet 1s exposed to movements i the USS/AS exchange rates. The Group does not seek to hedge this exposure.

(d}  Commadity risk

The Group currently has no material exposure to commodaty risk
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23 Financial instraments

(@)  Fair values

There 15 no material difference between the fair value of the Group's financial instruments and the carrying

amounts recognised m the financial statements.

() Inferest rate risk

Interest rate risk exposures

The Economtic Entity's exposute to interest rate risk and the effective weighted average mnrerest raze for classes of

financral assets and financial f1abilities 15 set our below

2006
Consolidated

Financial assets
Cash assets

Trade and other
receivabiles

Receivaliles

Financial liakilities
Trade and other pavabies

Enerest bearing babilities

Non - Fived Rate  Fived Rate Floating Total Weighted

Interest i Year or Over 1 10 3 Interest Average
g Bearing fess Years Rate $ effective
z. $ Interest

$ $ $ Rate
$

ib B 223,650 223,650 5.2%
11 24,1645 - 24,3165
12 5232443 5232443 3.65%0
8 24,1645 5,232,443 223,650 5480258
I B
17 M
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2008
Conselidated

Financial assets
Cash assets

Trade and other
receivabiles

Receivalles s+

Financial lakbilities
Trade and other payables

Amount due to related
party

Enserest bearing Habilities

20006

Parent
Financial assets
Cash assets

Trade and other
receivabiles

Receivaliles”

Fnvestments in
subsidiaries

Financial liakilities
Trade and other pavabies

Enerest bearing babilities

Non - Fived Rate  Fived Rate Floating Total Weighted
Interest i Year or Over 1 10 3 Interest Average
‘;“: Bearing fess Years Rate $ effeciive
z b Interest
$ $ $ Rate
$
i0 - - 1,603,794 1,603,794 5.5%
11 17,714 - 17,714 -
11 5140336 5,140,335 3.0
17,714 5,140,336 1,603,794 4,761,844
I - B
16 1,821,243 1,821,243 -
17 HELOG0 S60,000 A5 7%
1,821,243 - SH0,000 2,381,243
Non - Fived Rate  Fived Rate Floating Total Weighted
Interest i Year or Over 1 10 3 Interest Average
‘E Bearing foss Years Rate L effeciive
z b Interest
$ $ $ Rate
b
i0 - 223266 223,666 5.2%
11 £5,387 - £5,387
11 5232443 5,232,443 3609
12 213,906 - 213,906
979,293 5232443 223,666 4,435,002
I B
17 -
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2008
Parent
Financial assets

Cash assets

Trade and other
receivabiles

Receivalles”

Fnvestments in
subsidiaries

Financial labilitics
Trade and other payables

Enserest bearing Habilities

Non - Fived Rate  Fived Rate Floating Total Weighted
Interest i Year or Over 1 10 3 Interest Average
§ Bearing foss Years Rate L effeciive
z b Interest
$ $ $ Rate
$
i0 - 1,603,238 1,403,238 5.5%
11 Al94i6 - A9416 -
11 - 514,336 5,140,336 5.5%
12 467,623 - 467,623
987,039 514,336 1,603,238 7730613
14 1,521,243 - 1,821 243 -
17 HELOG0 S60,000 A5 7%
1,821,243 - SH0,000 2,381,243

+Effective interest on receivables has been charged at 3.6%. The nominal interest charged on these recervables 1s

3% as per note 11.

++Interest on receivables has been charged at 3.0% representing the nominal interest recetvable. The company has
taken the election available under AASB 1 not to restate comparative financial assers and habilities m accordance

with AASB 132 and AASE 139.r

24 Dividends

No dividends were paid or proposed in the year.

The Economic Entity does not have any available franking credits
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25  Commitments

Exploration expenditure commitments

In order to maintain current nights of tenure 1o exploration tenements, the Economic Entity is required to
perform exploration work to meet the mimimum expenditure requirements spectfied by various Stare
sovernments. These obligations are subject to renegotiation when applicanion for a mining lease 1s made and at
other times. These obligations are not provided for 1n the accounts and are payable:

Economic Entity Company

Within one year 356,015

Ome year or later and no fater than fve vears B60,648
Later than 5 years 197,224

1407887

Operating lease commitnents

Future operating lease rentals not provided for in the financial statements and payable:

Economic Entity Company

Within one vear 46,432

One vear o later and no laser than five years 101,952

148,384

The Economic Entity rents offices at 201/ 80 Willtam Street, Sydney. The properey lease Is a non-cancellable lease with a three-
year tert, with rent pavable monshly in advance. Contingent rental provisions within the lease agreement require that the
minimum lease payments be increased by reference to the CPL An option exists at the end of the shreeyear term For an
additional term of three vears,

The lease is secuted by way of 2 bank guarantee in favour of National Australia Bank in the amount of $28,805 with an offset
provision against deposits held by the Company which are included in Noge H
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26 Conirolled entities

Percentage Owned

Particulars in relation to controlled entities .
Couniry of Incorporstion

Parent Entity

Diamond Rose N1 - Australia
Countrolled entities

Australian Phamond Mining Pey Limited 160 Australta
Golden Rose Pry Limired 16} Australia
Golden Rose Fnternational Limited 73 Australia

Australian PHamond Miniag Pre Lid, a controlled entity of the Company applied for voluntary devegistration on
23 August 2005, Application was approved by ASC on 2 September 2005 and was subsequently deregistered on
§ November 2005,

During 2005 the Company acquired 25,500,000 ordinary shares of Golden Rose International Limited. By the end of
2005, Pramond Rose holds 73009 of the ordinary shares of Golden Rose International Pty Limited Details of the
acquisitions are as follows:

Economic Entity Company

2003

Consideration {cash} 467,61
Fair value of net assers of ensity acquired

Goodwiif 467,61
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27 Investments accounted for using the
equity method
Investment casrying

amoint
Consolidated

DJetatls of the mvestment in associares 1s as follows: Owaership
Inierest

Name (Principal Activities)
Ohpalen Pry Limied (Mining)
CGuanaco Mining Company Limited {Mining)

Guanaco Mining Company Limited is incorporated Ins she Bricish Virgin Esfands.

Economic Eatity
2003
$

Meovements in carrying value of investments
Investment in associate 411,573
Share of losses of the associate (#11,573)
Meovements in carrying value of investments
Carrying amount of investment in associate at .
the beginning of the financial vear
Acquisition 411,573
Share of loss {411,573)
Provision for diminution
Carrying amount of investment in assoctate at
end of year
Share of the associate’s balance sheet
Current assets 174,423
Non-current assets 2,784,248

2,958 669
Currens habilities £,577,148
Non-current {1abiiities 247661

4,053,758
Net Liabiiitres {1.095,089)
Share of the asseciate’s loss
Loss before income tax 562,123
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Reconciliation of the Company’s share of
associate’s accumulated fosses

Losses brought to account in the financial

statements of Diamond Rose NL

Losses not brought to account

Equity items not brought to account

Share of associates net Habifities

28 Cash flow information

Reconciliation of cash flow from operations
with profit (loss) after income tax

Profie (boss) afier Income sax

Nonecasi flows in profic

1nterese received

inkcrest paid

Explortion and evaluation expenditure written
off

Depreciation

Net gain on disposal of plant and equipment

Provision for impairment of financial assets

Share of associated companies net profit after
Ecome tax

Ner cash used in operating activities before change in
assets and Habilities
Changes in assets and liabilities:

{increase)/Decrease in trade and other receivables

{Decrease)/Increase in rade and other payables

Cashflow from operations

Economic Eatity

2003

411,573

55,172

£ 466,745

(371,656)

E095,089

Economic Eatity

(3,268,927

{4,054)

31,041

30,257

(1,001,109

316,030

There were no unused loan or credit facilities at yearend.

Company
2003

(2,827,770)

(4,054)

41,228

30,257

(2,741,339)

399 397)
1,702,804

(438,143}
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29  Related partics

Directors

The name of each person holding the position of Director during the year are the Fon Marcus Emnfeld, Terence
Willsteed, Pablo Kohen {restgned), Laura Rovner (resigned}, Mark Schabas {resigned) and Pablo Vergara del Carril.
Amounts paid to Directors are set out m the Directors Report

Directors’ boldings of shares and share options

The parent company of Diamond Rose NL 1s Global Gold {(formerly Nileman Zone SA) which is 2 private
company controlled by Guanaco Capatal Holdings Corp. Global Gold holds 257,893,301 (2004: 257,893,301}
ordinary shares and 90,560,038 unlisted options exercisable at between 10 and 20 cents over the next four years in
the Company.

My Pablo Vergara del Carnl is 2 Director of Diamond Rose Ni, Guanaco Capital Holdimgs Corp and of Global
Gold; he has no direct holding 1 etther shares or options in any of these companies.

Mr Einfeld and Mr Willsteed do not hold any shares or options m the Company ether directly or indirectly.

ttimate Parent Entity
On 18 May 2005, Guanaco Capatal Heldings Corp advanced $1,000,000 to the Company for its exclusive use, in

consideration of a later 1ssue of 23,255,814 securities. In accordance with an announcement made to the ASX on
18 August 2006, the advance will be converted to ordinary share capatal of the Company following shareholder
approval, which will be sought at the Company's next Annual General Meeting.

Wholly owned and partly swned controlled entities

Apgregate amounts receivable from Golden Rose Pry Limited as at 30 June 2006 were 585,947 {2005: §58,993).
Impairment losses of $99,957 were provided against this loan in the year ended 30 June 2006.

Aggregate amounts recetvable from Golden Rose International Limited as at 30 June 2006 were $446,283 (2005:
$442,709).
Asseciated entities

Ageregate amounts recetvable from Guanaco Mining Company Limited as at 30 June 2006 were 85,232,443 (2005:
$5,140,336) mcluding interest and forergn exchange adjustments. Interest is charged on the loan at 3%. Total
mterest accrued m the year was $147,456 (2005: $117,798)

Subsequent events
In August 2006 the Company received funding from its largest sharcholder on the following terms:
1. Funding 1s in the form of a loan advance of $340,000 pending the issue of 12,558,140 Fully Paid
shares at an issue price of 4.3 cents. The loan 1s partially secured by a clharge over the Company.
2. The funds have been provided in this form so that they are available for use by the Company
pending the issue of securities.
3. Shareholder approval for the share 1ssue will be sought at the Company’s AGM, following which the
Company will apply for quotarton of the shares.
4, The loan attracts no taterest prior to the AGM. Thereafter the loan attracts mterest at the Westpac

Indicator Lending Rate commencing 3 days after the AGM.

Other than as disclosed there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the finanaal year and the date of
this report any item, transaction or event of a materiat and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, to affect significantly the operations, or the state of affairs of the Economic Ennty, m future
financial years.

Ultimatc parent entity

The Parent Entity 1s ulumately controlled by Guanace Capital Holdings Corp. which is incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

Company Details

The registered office of the Company is:

Terrace Tower

Suize 201, 80 Willtam Street, Sydney NSW 2011
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DIAMOND ROSE NL
DIRECTORS DECLARATION

In the opimion of the directors of Diamond Rose NL:

a)

b)

<

the accompanying financial statements and notes are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
comply with the accounting standards and give a true and fair view of the Company's and the
Economic Entity's financial position as at 30 June 2006 and of their performance for the year ended
on that date.

at the date of thes declaration there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able
to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

the directors have been given the declarations by the chief executive officer and clhief financial
officer required by Section 2954,

Stgned m accordance with a resolution of the directors.

AW

Terence Willsteed
VieeChairman

Sydney, 29 September 2006
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Chartered Accountants
& Business Advisers

Independent Audit Report to the Members
of Diamond Rose NL

Scope
The financial report, remuneration disclosures and directors’ responsibifity

The financial report comprises the balance sheet, income statement, siatement of changes in equity,
cash flow statement, accempanying notes fo the financial statements, and the Directors’ Daclaration
for both Biamond Rose NL {the company) and Diamond Rose NL {the consolidated entity}, for the
year ended 30 June 2006. The consolidated entity comprises both the company and the enfities it
controlled during the year.

The company has disclosed information about the remuneration of Directors and key management
personnel {“remuneration disclosures”), as required by Accounting Standard AASB 124 Related Party
Disclosures, under, the heading “Remuneration Report” in pages 12 to 13 of the Directors’ Report, as
permitted by the Corporations Regulations 2001.

The Directors of the company are respensible for the preparation and true and fair presentation of the
financial report in accordance with the Cerporations Act 2001. This includes responsibility for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal controls that are designed to prevent and
detect fraud and error, and for the accounting polficies and acceunting estimates inherent in the
financial report. The Direclors are also responsible for the preparation and presentation of the
remuneration disclosures contained in the Directors’ Report in accordance with the Corporations
Regulations 2001.

Audit approach

We conducted an independent audit in order to express an opinion to the members of the company.
Cur audit was conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards in order o provide
reasonable assurance as {0 whether the financial report is free of maierial missiatement and the
remuneration disclosures in the Directors’ Report comply with Accounting Standard AASB 124. The
nature of an audit is influenced by factors such as the use of professional judgement, selective
testing, the inherent limitations of internal centrel, and the availability of persuasive rather than
conclusive evidence. Therafore, an audit cannot guarantee that all material misstatements have been
identified.

We performed procedures 1o assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents
fairly, in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including cempliance with Accounting Standards
and other mandatory financial reporiing requirements in Ausiralia, a view which is consistent with our
understanding of the company’s and the ecenomic entity’s financial position, and of their perfermance
as represented by the resulis of their operations and cash flows and whather the remuneration
disclosures in the Directors’ Report comply with Accounting Standard AASBE 124.

While we considered the effectiveness of management's internal conirels over financial reporting
when determining the nature and exient of our precedures, our audit was not designed to provide
assurance on internal controls.

Tel: 61 2 8251 4100 | Fax: 61 2 8240 9821 | www.pkf.com.au

New South Wales Parinership | ABN B3 236 985 726

Level 10, 1 Margaret Street | Sydney | New South Wales 2000 | Australia
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Liability timited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legisiation



Independent Audit Report to the Members
of Diamond Rose NL {cont’d)

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, which included:
a. examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence supperting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report and remuneration disclosures, and

b. assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors.

Independence

In conducting our audit, we foliowed applicable independence requirements of Australian professional
ethical pronouncements and the Corporations Act 2001.

Audit opinion

In our epinion:

1. the financial repert of Diamond Rose NL is in accordance with:
{a) The Corporations Act 2001, including:

{i) giving a true and fair view of the company's and consolidated entity's financial
position as at 3¢ June 2006 and of their performance for the year ended on
that date; and

{ii} complying with Accounting Standards in Australia and the Corporations
Regulations 2001; and

ts)] other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia.

2. the remuneration disclosures that are contained in pages 12 to 13 of the Dirgctors” Report
comply with Accounting Standard AASB 124 and the Corporations Regulations 2001.



Independent Audit Report to the Members
of Diamond Rose NL {cont’d)

Inherent uncertainty regarding continuation as a going concern

Without gualification fo the opinion expressed above, attention is drawn to the following matier. As
disclosed in Note 2, the ongoing viability of the consolidated entity and the recoverability of its nen-
current assets is dependent on the success of the Guanaco Mining proiect. The Directors believe that
the proiect will be ullimately successful and that the nen-current assets are included in the financial
report at their recoverable amount.

The financial report has been prepared on the basis of a going concern. This basis presumes that
funds will be available to finance future operations, preject expenditure, exploration, commitments,
and to repay liabilities. The Directors believe that the consolidated entity will be able to fund these
commitments through equity raising. and the sale or joint venturing of interests held in mineral
tenements and projects.

It additional funds are net raised there is significant uncertainty as to whether Diamond Rose NL will
be able fo continue as a going concern. If Ciamond Rose NL is unable to continue as a going

concern, it may be required to reafise its assets, and extinguish its liabilities other than in the normal
course of business and at amounts different from those currently stated in the financial report.

V /2

Lo

Bruce Gordon Sydney
Partner Dated 29 September 2006
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REQUIRED
BY AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED

Additional information mcluded 1n accordance with the Listing Rules of the Australtan Stock Exchange Limized.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006

This statement outlines the main corporate governance practices in place throughout the financal year, which
comply with the ASX Corporate Governance Councl recommendations, unless otherwise stated.

Board of Directors and its Committees

Your board is responsible for the overall Corporate Governance of the Economic Entity including its strategic
direction, establishing goals for management and monitonng the achievement of these goals.

To assist in the execution of 155 responsibilities, your board has established an Audit Committee. The Audiz
Committee has a written mandate and operating procedures, which are reviewed on 2 regular basts. The
effectiveness of the Audit Committee 15 also constantly monitored. Your board has also established a framework
for the management of the Company including a system of internal control.

Composition of Board

The names of the directors of the Company in office at the date of this Statement are set out in the Directors’
Report on pages 8 to 14 of the annual report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has 2 documented Charter, approved by the Board. The role of the Commuittee 1s to advise
on the establishment and maintenance of a framework of 1ternal control and appropriate ethical standards for
the management of the Economic Entity.

1t also gives the Board of Directors additional assurance reparding the quality and rebabihity of finanaal
mformation prepared for use by the Board in determining policies or for inclusion i the financial report.
The members of the Audit Committee during the pear were:

*  ©Mr Terence Willsteed (Non-Executive Director - Chairman Audit Committee)

s  The Hon Marcus Finfeld {(Non-Executive Director}

Audit Committee Meetings are also attended by the external auditors and management representatives as required.

The responsibility of the andit committee includes:
*  Reviewing the finanaal report and other financizl information distributed externally;

»  Reviewing any new accounting policies to ensure compliance with Austrabian Accounting Standards and
generally accepted accounting principles;

»  Considering whether non-audit services provided by the external auditor are consistent with mamtainmg
the external auditors’ independence;

e Lisising with the external audirors and ensuring thar the annual and half year starutory audits are
conducted in an effective manner;

*  Reviewing the Company’s policies and procedures for convergence with International Financial Reporting
Standards for reporting periods beginning on 1 July 2006; and

¢+ Momtonng the procedure 1n place to ensure compliance with the Corporation Act 2001 and Seock
Exchange Listing Rules and all other regularory requirements.

The Audit Committee reviews the performance of the external auditors on an annual basts and normally meets
with them durmng the following:

Audit planning:

¢ To discuss the external audit plan
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*#  To discuss any significant issues that may be foreseen
»  To discuss the impact of any proposed changes i1 accounting policies on the financial statements

s To review the fees proposed for the audit work to be performed

Prior to announcements of results:

®  To review the half yearly and prehiminary final report piior to lodgement of these documents with ASX,
and any significant adjustments required as a result of the audit and

*  To make the necessary recommendations o the Board for the approval of these documents.

Annual reporting:

*  To review the results and findings of the auditor, the adequacy of accounting and financial controls, and
to monitor the implementation of any recommendations made;

*  To review the draft financial report and audit report and o make the necessary recommendations to the
Board for the approval of the financial report.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established 2 Remuneration and Nomination Committee {"the Committee®} to oversee the
processes of director and senior management remuneration, and nomination to the Board. The ole of the
Remuneration and Nomination Commuittee is documented m a Charter which 1s approved by the Board of
Directors.

The members of the Remuneration Commitiee during the year were:
s Mr Terence Willsteed {Non-Executive Director - Chatrman Audit Committee}
#  The IMon Marcus Einfeld {Non-Executive Director)
# My Pablo Kohen (Executive Direcror}

¢ Ms Laura Rovner {Executive Director)

The functions of the Committee are to review and make recommendations concerning remuneration {(including
amount, structure and policies} of directors and senior management.

The vbjectives of the Conmities concerning remuneration dre:

s to appropriately reward and thereby encourage excellent performance by management and directors, as
measured by growth of the Company;

*  to devise and/or approve appropriate incentives to facilitate growth, focussing ot just on salary buton a
range of remuneration methods;

*  to ke o account the requirements and expectations of all stakeholders, including shareholders, so that
remuneration is balanced by expectations concerning profitability of the Company.

The functions of the Committee are to review:
*  policies for the annual remuneration of directors and senlor management;
»  the basts of calculation of remuneration of those persons to ensure the appearance of reasonableness;

*  current industry practice in the remuneration of directors and senlor executives of similar size and
mdustry entities;

e different methods of remuneracion, mcluding:
*  bonus schemes;

» employee Share Opiion Scheme;

e  fringe benefits;

*  superannuation;

*  retirement and termination packages.
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The Copmittee alse revicws:
»  professional indemunity policies;
®  related pany disclosures in the financal statements;
*  communication with major stakeholders to gauge thair views on remuneration packages.
The Commutiee's objectives concerning remuneration are to devise appropriate criteria for Board membership,
and 1dentify specific individuals for Board membership.
The Copmittee takes inte dcconnt;

s the skill sets of current Board members;
»  the current and future requirements of the Company for skills in particular areas which it lacks;
*  the value to stakeholders of a Board comprising individuals with high levels of independence and stature.

The Commitiee fosters open and confidential communications at 1ts meetings and with the entire Board on
potential nominees.

The Commitiee also initiates an annual review of Board and individual director performance, including a review
of Board size, committee structures, and effectiveness of Board meetings.

Internal Control Framework

The Board acknowledges that 1t 1s responsible for the overall internal control framework, but recognises that no
cost effective tnternal control system will preclude all errors and irregularities. To assist m discharging this
responsibibiy, the Board has mstigated an mternal control framework that can be described as follows:

+  Financlal reporting - an annual budget 1s prepared by management and approved by the directors.
Monthly actual results are reported against budget and revised forecasts for the year are prepared
regularly. The Company reports to shareholders half-yearly. Procedures are also 1n place to ensure that
price sensitive information is reported to the ASX in accordance with Continuous Disclosure
Requirements.

* Investment appraisal - the Economic Enrity has clearly defined guidelines for capizal expenditure. These
mnclude annual budgets, detatled appraisal and review procedures, levels of authority and due diligence
requirements where businesses are bemng acquired or divested.

The Role of Sharcholders

The Board of Directors aims to ensure that the shareholders are informed of all major developments affecting the
consohidated entities state of affairs. Information 1s communicated to sharcholders as follows:

»  the annual report 1s distritbuted to all shareholders {unless a shareholder has spectfically requested not to
recetve the document). The Board ensures that the annual report includes relevant information about the
operations of the Economic Ennity during the year, changes m the sate of affairs of the Economic Entity
and details of furure developments, in addition to the other disclosures required by the Corporations Act

2001;

» the quarterly report contains summansed financial information and a review of the operations of the
Economic Enzity during the period.

These reports are posted on the Company’s website at www.diamondrose.com.au; as are announcements made
to the ASX

The sharehelders are responsible for voting on the appointment of directors.

The Board encourages full participation of shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to ensure a high level of
accountability and 1dentification with the consolidated entities strategy and goals. Important 1ssues are presented
to the shareholders as single resolutions.

Securities Trading Pelicy

The Economic Ennity’s share trading policy restricts the times and circumstances 11 which directors, employees
and parties legally related to them, may trade in shares of the Company or its listed controlied entity. Trading 1s
not permitted when directors or employees possess price sensitive information which has not yet been disclosed to
the marker.
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Principles of Good Corporate Governance and Best Practice Recommendations

In March 2003, the ASX Corporate Governance Councit {Council) released 1ts “Principles of Good Corporate
Governance and Best Practice Recommendations” (Recommendations).

Listing Rule 14.10.3 requires a vompany to disclose the extent to which the entity has followed the best practice
recommendations set by the Council during the reporting pertod. If the entity has not followed all of the
recommendations it must identfy those recommendations that have not been followed and give reasons for not
following them. If a recommendation had been followed for only part of the period, the enzity must state the
period during which it had been followed.

In accordance with Listing Rule 14.10.3 the Company states thar it has complied with each of the Ten Essential
Corporate Governance principles and the corresponding Best Practice recommendations as published by the ASX
Corporate Governance Counci! {“ASX Princpals and recommendations™), other than in refation to the marers

specified below.

Prl;}c{ljpal Best Practice Recommendation Compliance or Explanation for Non-compliance

1 1.1 Formalise and disclose the A formal policy document outlining board and
functions reserved to the management functions has not been established as yer.
ﬁ;‘;}liiﬁiéiow delegated to The d_irecroys hav? determined that given the size and

: direction of the Company, hands on day-to-day
management and supervision by directors is currenily m its
best interests.

2 2.1 A majority of the Board Given the nature and size of the Company, tts business
should be independent mnterests and the stage of development, the board is of the
directors. view that there is an adequate and broad mix of skills

required and that given thetr experience each of the
directors are aware of and capable of acting i an
mndependent manner and m the best interests of
shareholders.

2 2.3 The same mdividual should The Company has not appointed 2 chief executive officer
not exercise the roles of because thte directors have determined tlrat the appolntment
chairperson and chief and cost of a chief executive officer 1s not necessary or
executive officer. justafied ar this time. For the present the divectors are

carrying out the responsibilities of chief executive officer
with the daily assistance of the company secretary and such
outside expert assistance and advice as 18 necessary.

2 2.4 The Board should establish 2 The Board does not have a nomination commirtee because
nomination committee. in the directors’ view, 2 Company of this size and stage of

development can best operate with the functions of a
nomination committee undertaken by the full Board.

3 3.1  Establish 2 code of conduct to The Company has not established a code of conduct

suide the divectors, the chief
executive officer {or
equivalent), the chief financial
officer {or equivalent) and any
other key executives as to:

the practices necessary to
maintain confidence in the
Company's mregrity

the responsibility and
accountability of mdividuals

for reporting and nvestigating

reports of unethical practices.

because it did not mherit a code from the previous Board.
The Company will formulate a code appropriate for the
Company which will be posted on the Company's website
when adopted.
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Prl;}c{ljpal Best Practice Recommendation Compliance or Explanation for Non-compliance
4 43 Structure the audit committee  The Audi Commirtee comprises Terrence Willsteed as
so that it consists of: Chairman and the Company Chairman, with the Company
. Secretary as secretary. The committee thus has fewer than
* only non-executive directors . . ) s
the mintmum 3 non-executive member composition and
* a majority of independent lacks a majority of independent directors as recommended.
directors The Board 15 keeping the Audit Committed’s Charter under
+ an mdependent chairperson, constant review 1n order to meet the guidelines as
who 1s not chairperson of the  appropitate to the current size, structure, and stage of
board development of the Company. The members of the Audit
Committee possess the requisite financial expertise and
* at least three members . . ] . _
mdustry experience necessary to effectively carry out the
Commattee's mandate.

5 5.1  Establish written policies and  No wrttten policies and procedures designed to ensure
procedures designed to ensure  vompliance with ASX Listing Rule disclosure requirements
compliance with ASX Listing  and accountability for the compliance were inherited from
Rule disclosure requirements the previous Board. Formal policies will be drafted and will
and to ensure accountability at  be posted on the Company’s website when adopied. The
a senlor management level for  Company 1s in regular contact with its solicitors to ensure
that compliance. ASX compliance.

& 6.1 Design and disclose a The new Board 1s committed to the objective of proper
COmMMUIICations SIrategy o communication with shareholders and will actively
promote effective promote shareholder involvement in the Company
communication with mncluding regular information on the Company's website, A
shareholders and encourage formal policy wiil be drafted to express these goals and will
effective participation at be posted on the Company’s website when adopied.
seneral meetings.

7 7.1 The board or appropriate Informal procedures were in place prior to the new Board
board commuatiee should beintg appointed. The board 1s formulating its policies on
establish policies on risk these matters which will be posted on the Company's
oversight and management. website when adopted.

14 10L1  Establish and disclose a code  The Board considers that 115 practices are the equivalent to

of conduct to guide
compliance with legal and
other obligations to legitimate
stakeholders.

the gurdelines. A draft code will be prepared and will be
made available on the Company’s website when adopted.

The Board aspires to the highest standards of corporate sovernance and is fully supportive of and commirted to the

aims, spanit and letter of the Recommendations and to their implementation as appropriate for a company of this

size.
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Statement of issued capital at 27 September 2006

a) Duseribution of fully paid ordinary shareholders
Size of Holding Shareholders Number of Shares Held
b 1LOb0 208 104,189
001 - 5,000 280 226,150
ERLLRER ALY 266 2281,321
HRLOOGT - 106,000 536 22048,112
HILOGT and over 139 379,040,433
Total 1429 404,418,205
b} There are no restrictions on the voting rights attached 1o the fully paid ordinary shares. On a show

of hands, every member present in person shall have one vote and upon a poll, every member
present in person or by proxy shall have one vote for every share held.

< At the date of this statement there existed 795 ordinary fully paid sharcholders holding less than a

marketable parcel of shares.

Options on Issue at 27 September 2006

There are 114,873,337 unlisted options on ssue as detailed below:

No of Options Exercise price Expiry date No of Holders
8,773,337 4 cents 14710/ 2009
23,000,000 12 cents HY T/ 2007
11,122,850 20 cenes 20/06/ 2007
44,245,110 20 cents HY T/ 2007
27,732,040 20 cenes F4/16,/ 2008

Global Gold SA holds 90,560,038 of these options.

Securities approved for the purposes of Item 7 of section 611 of the Corporations Act:

Sharcholders approved the issue of shares upon converston of these options pursuant to Item 7 of section 611 of

the Corporations Act. 90,560,038 of these options are yet to be exercised by Global Gold SA.

Substaniial Shareholders

At 27 Seprember 2006 the Company's register of substantial shareholdings shows the following:

Name Shares Held
Westpac Custodian Nominees Limited * 257,893,301

* 257,893,301 beneficially held by Global Gold SA

Top Twenty Shareholders as at 27 September 2006

Rank Holder MNumber of Shares % Issued Capital
H Westpae Custodian Nominees Limited 259,955,098 64,280
2 ANZ Nominees Limited 15,129,132 3. 74
3 FCSC Limited 1518454 2,601
4 Citleorp Nominees Pty Limited 9,188,741 2.274%,
5 Shefarav Pry Limuted 17,566,305 2.23%
£ Niako Ineestents Pry Led 3,950,060 (3,558,
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Rank Holder MNumber of Shares % Issued Capital
7 W Daniel Goberman 3,854,865 (0.55%,
4 Moshe Ambarchi 3,500,000 (3B 70
9 Hazlaha Favestrents Limired 3,368,647 O H3%
H D & I3 Nominees Pry Lad 2,584,740 (3.64%,
i1 Birchali Projects Lad 2300000 0.57%
¥ Greenford Invesiments Limied 2 G000 0.49¢%
13 Mountain Side Floldings Led 1,948,000 (3,480
£ Mr Peter Allan Learmoni 1,500,000 (.37
I5 Gordon Holdimes ((Qld) Pey Lad 1,371,320 (.34
Ié A G brvine Pry Lid 1,261,500 (3.310%%
13 Davoon Pry Limited 1,112,590 (3, 280
I8 Dana Prineer 1,087,506 (. 27%
19 Mr Mare Duneler 1,087,500 (. 27%
20 Mr Wayne Brian Laughton 1,048,000 0.26%

344,642 464 85.220%
Schedule of Mineral Tenements as at 28 September 2006
Tenement Project Mame Interesi
P 15/4514 Bulfabulling G50
P 15/4515 Bulfabulling G50
P 15/4514 Bulfabulling G50
P 15/4518 Bulfabulling G50
P 15/4519 Bulfabulling G50
P 15/4520 Bulfabulling G50
P 15/4521 Bulfabulling G50
P 1574522 Bulbabulling G50
M 778469 Broadbents 909
I 40/197 Kookynie 9594,
I 407198 Kookynie 9594,
Ed/1112 Kookynie 9594,
E40/1116 Kookynie 9594,
E40/1117% Kookyanie 5%,
E40/1118% Kookynie 95%;
¥ 37/728 Leonora 7%
E37/729 Leonora T34
£ 37/736% Raeside T
£ 4779527 Rocklea O

* Application Pending
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